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VISION

To become our customers’ preferred strategic partner in the
acoustics and electronics industries.

MISSION

Through advancements in innovative technologies, we strive to
provide value-added and distinct products to our customers.

VALUES

We, as a partner, abide by our commitment to our customers.
We, as an innovator, relentlessly pursue excellence.
We, as a team, cross the finish line together.
We, as a corporate citizen, devote ourselves to the prosperity
of our society.
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Financial Highlights

P EEE RS

For the year ended 31 March £Z3A31HLFE

2016 2015 Change %1t
Operating results REEE
Gross margin (%) FEFE(%) 17.3 14.4 2.9pts BB
Operating profit margin (%) 45 4 ) 2K (%) 2.1 1.2 0.9pts B 2h
Net profit margin (%) 47 2R (%) 1.0 1.0 =
Return on equity holders (%) HEDEE ALRE(%) 1.6 1.7 -0.1pts B2
Financial position B AR R
Total assets (HK$'000) REE(THERL) 995,747 1,063,485 -6.4%
Cash and bank deposits (HK$'000) Be RRTTER(FET) 415,877 409,325 1.6%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) MR (Tt 713,231 754,933 -5.5%
Financial Ratio BIStE &
Current ratio (Times) mENEL R (fF) 3.4 3.1 9.7%
Quick ratio (Times) RELL R (FF) 2.7 2.6 3.8%
Turnover ratio B R
Inventory turnover (days) FEEE(R) 62 54 14.8%
Debtors turnover (days) FEWERAEE(H) yAl 66 7.6%
Creditors turnover (days) FEfNERAEE(H) 57 54 5.6%
Operating cycle (days) K E(H) 76 66 15.2%
Dividends per share (HK cents) BREE (L) 7.0 9.0 -22.2%
Interim AR HA 2.0 4.0 -50.0%
Final RHR 5.0 5.0 -
Revenue WA Shareholders’ equity B REZS Dividends per Share SRR &
HK$ millon HE#7T HK$ millon B &#87T HK cent 71l
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Financial Summary

CREESE

NTRELSERERARAB([ARA]) REH
BRARZHGEEERER MRV HIRARZBRE:

The following is a summary of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position of Fujikon Industrial
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries:

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income FmEE2EWAK
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue WA 1,160,220 1,264,135 1,525,276 1,605,551 1,305,943
Cost of sales SHERK A (959,963) (1,082,479) (1,265,028) (1,280,150) (1,075,889)
Gross profit EF 200,257 181,656 260,248 325,401 230,054
Other gains/(losses) — net Hithlas,/(E518) —F48 3,221 15,295 4,466 14,890 (1,834)
Distribution and selling expenses DEMEET (14,409) (22,753) (20,684) (24,956) (22,128)
General and administrative expenses —A% & 1TE( S HH (164,662)  (158,852)  (166,518)  (176,269)  (134,540)
Operating profit B E N 24,407 15,346 77,512 139,066 71,552
Finance income BhE WA 5,983 9,473 5,197 6,363 4,558
Finance costs BhE AR = = (1.414) (2,621) (4,373)
Profit before income tax B P45 25 Bl A 30,390 24,819 81,295 142,808 71,737
Income tax expenses FR{S RS (5,424) (4,345) (15,352) (23,926) (11,910)
Profit for the year F A& 24,966 20,474 65,943 118,882 59,827
Attributable to: BRI
Equity holders of the Company RARIRERE A 11,259 12,602 62,318 114,312 56,447
Non-controlling interests I HI M = 13,707 7,872 3,625 4,570 3,380
24,966 20,474 65,943 118,882 59,827
2015/2016 £ ErSBXERERAT 3




Financial Summary

ERE
Consolidated statement of financial position HREMBERRK
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB MR 155,771 179,369 239,129 208,813 196,191
Investment properties REME 3,530 3,710 3,120 2,860 1,900
Land use rights THb R AR 4,478 4,895 9,864 9,988 10,217
Non-current deposits and EmEIES R
other assets HiEE 1,930 7,303 5,202 7,504 =
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AIEHEMEEE 6,926 7,160 1,067 4,604 7,249
Deferred income tax assets EEFTSTAE 3,904 2,639 4,189 238 208
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 176,539 205076 262,571 234007 215765
Current assets MENEE
Inventories T 169,959 156,028 164,579 188,262 158,902
Trade receivables e E X 217,969 234,297 222,835 282,902 236,452
Other receivables Hfth pE U IR 12,629 47,369 22,280 29,627 17,069
Derivative financial instruments TESMITA - - - 121 164
Other financial assets at fair value  Z A VAT ABE
through profit or loss R E A B 15 B B 2,523 3,700 8,984 4,633 54,032
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ERBEE - - 1,266 = =
Current income tax recoverable Al 1 E BRFT 1S R 251 7,690 1,468 41 1,873
Pledged bank/fixed deposits HIEPEITIFR
TE BT AR - - - 11,499 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEED 415,877 409,325 468,852 441,933 425,391
_Total currentassets mBRERE 819.208 858409 890,264 ! 959,018 893,883
Current liabilities mEIAE
Trade payables FERER 140,904 159,970 163,028 168,227 151,656
Accruals and other payables FERT B A R EH AL
FEF TR 74,189 93,103 113,032 107,797 83,169
Derivative financial instruments PTHEEMT A 8,372 4,034 6,834 - -
Current income tax liabilities EHFGHAE 17,625 16,701 18,205 27,730 21,368
Bank borrowings RITEE - - - 42,138 40,541
_ Total current liabilities . nBafeE 241,090 273,808 301,09 345892 . 296,734
_Net current assets RBAEFE 578,118 584,601 ! 589,165 613,126 597,149
Total assets less current liabilities — #EEER S EE 754,657 789,677 851,736 847,133 812,914
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Financial Summary

HBEBE
Consolidated statement of financial position (continved)  #REHMBMRR KR (2)
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current liabilities IEmBAasE
Deferred income RIEU A - - = 494 1,864
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHAE 1,195 806 1,967 759 575
_Total non-current liabilities FRBAERE 1195 ¢ 806 1967 1253 2,439
Net assets BEFE 753,462 788,871 849,769 845,880 810,475
Equity L
Capital and reserves attributable to 53872 FIAXHE
the Company's equity holders BB AZ R R 5
Share capital A& AR 42,019 41,986 41,986 41,244 41,014
Other reserves Hib 182,890 206,604 244,820 228,761 217,517
Retained earnings R A
— Proposed dividends —EERER 21,010 20,993 37,787 49,880 61,521
— Others — EAth 467,312 485,350 479,037 480,128 444,406
713,231 754,933 803,630 800,013 764,458
Non-controlling interests FEAE B 40,231 33,938 46,139 45,867 46,017
Total equity e st 753,462 788,871 849,769 845,880 810,475

2015/2016 3 Er=BX£ERERAT 5




Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

Johnny Yeung £ #
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

FEIRITBARE
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To our shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“Fujikon” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2016.

Under the backdrop of a frail global economy, the electro-acoustic industry
experienced further consolidation during the past year. Persistent cut-
throat competition has resulted in a war of attrition, while leading
members of the industry have all been searching for ways to gain a leg up
on the competition. One way to achieve this has been through technical
sophistication, which in turn results in market differentiation. Consequently,
Fujikon has worked closely with many of the world’s leading electro-
acoustic brands as they jostle for top spot, and in so doing has maintained
a strong position in the market. The importance of our efforts is clearly
evident by the number of projects conducted and the rise in the number of
patents in our portfolio during the last 12 months.

As the preferred and trusted partner of our customers, we have worked
tirelessly on numerous product development projects, and in the course
of the past year have handled more projects than at any other financial
period in our history. In cooperation with some of the biggest names in
the electro-acoustic industry, we have once again shown that Fujikon
is synonymous with excellence, particularly in developing applications
incorporating various technologies, including Bluetooth, Active Noise
Cancellation (ANC) and Near Field Communication (NFC). We have also
remained committed to innovation as reflected by the filing of new patents
during the year covering bass enhancement, antenna placement and radio
frequency efficiency. Fujikon will continue to hone its product development
capability and incorporate state-of-the-art technologies into more exciting
new products, some of which will be entering the market in the near future.

Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

HFNVRER :

AANEBREREFE(EFSDMAREZELRER
ERAERAR(ARBA D REMBAR(TELS ]
H[AREEDBE2016F3ANAILFEZFEEE -

EEREBERBERT  2FEBTRE—FE
A MEBF/HERR SIBTEHERBE ¥R
BERTDHSERE - UEBERFHMER LM -
BBEZBERERRGRMN FEMSER/LE
Zo-Ait BELRRER - RALEBLERETS
- BBEFP AT TS LI - YELRFBRBETS
iz o BE—F  RAERZEERE - BNBETT
SIBM - REREKMEE o

EREFNERRAIEAERH  RMTESRNE
RZEEMAREAR  ZFETHBHERTE
KUY BBETE BBRREBTEZRERLEAS
tF BMBEYEFALREEN  HHRRAERS
ZERMMERER - BIRET - TEHRERANQ
BT BERE B AR BANFC) » AT —EHNERRK
MaFr - AEARFHMENTR—X - E9RE
EERE RRLENERIEME - BLREH
BIRREMRAEESN  SRREMBRAEZRIHE

o BRD EmS R EIRAT S

2015/2016 £ =BT EXEERERAF 7



Chairman’s Statement
FERE

While market differentiation is important for our customers, it is no less
relevant for Fujikon, and one means of achieving this is through strategic
This is well demonstrated in our healthy ties with new clients,
which have allowed us to extend our geographical reach beyond traditional

alliances.

markets, widen our product portfolio and expand our revenue streams. The
ability to meet a wide range of customers’ unique technical demands will
stand Fujikon in good stead as it has already laid a solid foundation for the
Group's sustainable development. We will therefore remain open minded to
new partnerships and explore new business frontiers while strengthening
bonds with existing customers, many of whom have been our staunchest
supporters.

In the past thirty years, we have experienced many ups and downs in the
industry and learnt that perseverance and foresight are essential in times of
challenge. While market consolidation has ousted many weaker players from
the industry, our sound business model, strong ties with leading electro-
acoustic brands and solid financial footing have been among the competitive
edges that have allowed us to persevere through testing times and grow
even stronger. We will continue to leverage all of these attributes to move
further ahead in the coming years.

Dividends

The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share. Together with an interim dividend of
HK2.0 cents per ordinary share already paid, a total payout of HK7.0 cents
per ordinary share will be distributed to shareholders for the year ended 31
March 2016.

Appreciation

| wish to take this opportunity to applaud the management team for their
efforts, which have led to further headway made by the Group during the
past year. Also, | must express my gratitude to the entire Fujikon workforce
for their hard work and commitment towards achieving the goals set out by
the Group. It goes without saying that all of Fujikon’s business partners,
shareholders and customers have our utmost appreciation for their unstinting
support. Going forward, we will continue to utilise all of our competitive
edges to expedite Fujikon's progress into a world-class electro-acoustic group
and to deliver fair returns to our shareholders.

Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business review

Over the past year, the global economic recovery has struggled to gain
traction, and market consolidation within the electro-acoustic industry has
persisted. For the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded
revenue of HK$1,160.2 million, a decline of 8.2% when compared with the
corresponding period of last year (2015: HK$1,264.1 million). The decline
was due to several factors, including conservative consumption sentiment
resulting from the generally weak global economy, change in product
mix as older products of the Group gave way to new products that began
production ramp ups, as well as loss of revenue resulting from the disposal
of unprofitable subsidiaries.

Gross profit however increased to HK$200.3 million compared with HK$181.7
million in the prior year due to the absence of a one-off expenditure that
was incurred in the preceding year in relation to product adjustments.
However, due to an increase in staff cost for talent retention, the absence of
one-off gain of HK$5.5 million from disposal of subsidiaries and an increase
in provision for obsolete stock, profit attributable to equity holders dipped by
10.7% to HK$11.3 million (2015: HK$12.6 million). Basic earnings per share
were HK2.7 cents (2015: HK3.0 cents).

Business segment analysis

Headsets and Headphones

As the core business of the Group, the headsets and headphones segment
generated revenue of HK$887.8 million (2015: HK$913.8 million), and
accounted for 76.5% of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31
March 2016.

The past year has remained challenging for players in the electro-acoustic
industry, with continued cut-throat competition which in turn led to the
postponement in orders by some customers of the Group so as to clear
existing inventories.

CEERE P R

e JE)

BE—F EREEERZ N EROTEREETT
HEE c HE2016F3ANB LT BFE - KREBERE
KA 1,160,200,000/8 7T - B A F R AR 2>8.2% (2015 :
1,264,100,000%8 7T ) - WAR D ThRARE TR EAME -

BREFEEEREXEIHEERNER  AKEHE
an HEE R T éu%%ﬁ/\ﬂjﬁ*;@ﬁ MEMEEZRIR

T AR HEERTHEQRGBRARKE

BE Wi A B X F A9181,700,000% T g =
200,300,000 0 ZEREAFRERABREE — X EF
X mASFEWEESERAY - A EEIJ?ATﬁ'i AT

BB TR - WERETHEHB QA8 — XK
#55,500,000/8 7T © LA R REBEE M Hﬁ@é%ﬁ/\ﬁﬁ
{5 5% L 210.7% 2 11,300,0007% 7T (2015 : 12,600,000
BIL) o BIREARAEFAE2.7EM(2015 : 3.08M) -
%%&/'\_‘ '\*ﬁ.

ANEMR SEEK

ERASEEMZLER BRERMLEEERERE
A g A.887,800,0007% 7T (2015 : 913,800,000 7T ) » 1k
AREBHZE2016F3 8318 ILFEHEWARIT6.5% °

HEBITER Tﬁg
FRHERY  BYAEBMETEEHER
REFE -

BE—FNRMKE - THH
ET$ J//{Hjliﬁs

2015/2016 F 3R




Management Discussion and Analysis
=] 1@ E DT A );,Z *ﬁ

Business segment analysis (Continued)

Headsets and Headphones (Continued)

Under severe competition and market consolidation, many of the Group's
internationally renowned customers have clearly recognised the need to
revitalise their product lines in order to protect their market positions.
Assisting in this goal, the Group capitalised on its engineering capability and
resources to develop products equipped with innovative technologies. It also
collaborated with its selected customers in co-developing advanced products.
All of these efforts have in turn led to a number of projects conducted by
Fujikon, as well as the further expansion of its patent portfolio during the
year under review.

In addition to collaborations with leading global brands on various projects,
Fujikon also explored business opportunities in Asia. Significant headway
has been achieved in ties with two newer key customers: one is a Chinese
company that provides products for a major smartphone brand in China,
while the other is a major player in the electro-acoustic market in India.

During the year, the Group introduced new products which featured several
advanced technologies, including Beryllium Diaphragm Drivers and Balanced
Armature Drivers while a Bluetooth outdoor speaker product also entered
the market. All of these items have achieved favourable market response,
leading to encouraging business opportunities for the Group.

Accessories and Components

The accessories and components business experienced a decline in revenue
for the year, slipping to HK$272.4 million due principally to the disposal of
unprofitably subsidiaries. Consequently, the business segment accounted
for 23.5% of the Group's total revenue. Nevertheless, the Group recorded
growth in profit thanks to the disposal of the aforementioned subsidiaries
as part of streamlining efforts as well as greater orders received from a key
customer; climbing by 22.8% to HK$25.9 million (2015: HK$21.1 million) for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

Since this segment has always been valued by the Group as it represents not
only an additional service for clients, but also a principal component of its
vertical integration structure, the management will continue to monitor its
operations to improve its development.
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Prospects

As in the past year, the upcoming financial period is expected to remain
challenging as there is no clear sign of a global economic recovery in sight.
The outlook for the electro-acoustic industry is therefore anticipated to be
similarly lacklustre, as intense competition and market consolidation will
persist. The management will remain highly vigilant in monitoring market
developments, and take steps to protect the Group's position, including the
bolstering of its core competencies.

Being the preferred and trusted partner of leading electro-acoustic brands,
the management is confident in the Group's capacity to weather the
difficult conditions ahead. With the past year marking a new high point in
terms of numbers of projects under development by the Group, the fruits
of such labours are expected in the years ahead. Among the products that
will enter the market include mono Bluetooth headsets for a new client,
thus broadening the Group’s portfolio of Bluetooth products even further.
Moreover, the trend towards miniaturisation and high functionality will see
the launch of exciting new products developed by the Group in FY2016/17.

The Group will continue to make investments in engineering and product
development to maintain its leading position in Active Noise Cancellation
(ANC), Bluetooth and Near Field Communication (NFC), among other
technologies. Such expertise will be the important calling cards for winning
still more customers, as well as the leverage for retaining the world’s leading
electro-acoustic brands.

The Group's product development prowess, while allowing it to garner new
business, has also opened the way for establishing its presence outside of
the traditional markets of Europe and the United States to include several
emerging markets. In view of constantly changing consumption sentiment in
different regions of the world, greater market presence offers the best means
of hedging against such changes. Hence, aside from persevering through
challenges, the management will look to enhance the Group's presence
globally where opportunities are favourable.

Going forward, the Group will continue to leverage the vast experience of its
management team to fortify Fujikon’s market position, strengthen ties with
renowned electro-acoustic brands and maintain its path to become a world-
class electro-acoustic group.

Management Discussion-and Analysis
EIRE R RO
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBNWR DM

Financial review

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained at a strong financial position. Net current assets
as at 31 March 2016 amounted to approximately HK$578.1 million (2015:
HK$584.6 million). The Group's current and quick ratios were approximately
3.4 times (2015: 3.1 times) and 2.7 times (2015: 2.6 times), respectively.

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$415.9 million
as at 31 March 2016, representing an increase of approximately 1.6%
against approximately HK$409.3 million as at 31 March 2015. Approximately
71.3%, 20.9% and 7.3% of the total cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars respectively,
and the remainders were in other currencies. As at 31 March 2016, the
Group had aggregated banking facilities of approximately HK$160.6 million
(2015: HK$160.6 million) from several banks for loans and trade financing,
with an unused balance of approximately HK$160.6 million (2015: HK$160.6
million).

An indebtedness of RMB25.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$31.7
million) owing to the Group by a former subsidiary, Zhejiang Fousine Science
& Technology Company Limited, had been fully repaid to the Group during
the year.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China with most
transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The
Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities to which
they relate.

The Group entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage such
exposure. The net fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts entered
into by the Group for managing the risk relating to monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies at 31 March 2016 was a liability of HK$8.4
million (2015: HK$4.0 million). Fair value losses on derivative financial
instruments accounted for approximately HK$4.3 million (2015: gains HK$2.8
million) for the year and such fair value losses/gains did not have impact to
the Group's real cash flow.

Furthermore, net realised gains from derivative financial instruments of
approximately HK$1.2 million (2015: HK$4.5 million) represented actual
settlements under derivative contracts during the year. The Group also had
net foreign exchange gains of approximately HK$8.5 million (2015: HK$1.1
million). If these net realised gains from derivative financial instruments and
net exchange gains were taken into account, the Group's foreign exchange
exposure was in net gains of approximately HK$9.7 million for the year,
representing an increase of approximately 72.2% against approximately
HK$5.6 million for last year.
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Financial review (continued)

Foreign Exchange Exposure (Continued)

As at 31 March 2016, there was one outstanding foreign exchange forward
contract which was expected to mature within 15 months. Although the
devaluation of RMB had negative financial impact derived from such foreign
exchange forward contract, it benefited to the Group’s operating costs in
Mainland China.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2016, the Group employed a total of approximately
4,200 (2015: 4,800) employees. The staff costs (including the directors’
emoluments) accounted for approximately HK$339.7 million (2015: HK$373.8
million) during the year.

The Group has developed its human resources policies and procedures based
on performance and merit. Employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of its salary and bonus system.
Discretionary bonus is linked to the profit performance of the Group as well
as individual performance. Benefits include staff accommodation, medical
schemes, share option scheme, Mandatory Provident Fund for employees in
Hong Kong and state-sponsored retirement plans for employees in Mainland
China. The Group has also developed training programs to its management
and employees to ensure they are properly trained.

Financial Guarantee

As at 31 March 2016, the Company had provided corporate guarantees of
approximately HK$155.7 million (2015: HK$155.7 million) to several banks to
secure banking facilities of its subsidiaries. No facilities were utilised by the
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERERERERE

Executive Director

Mr. YEUNG Chi Hung, Johnny, M.H., aged 71, is a co-founder of the
Group. He has been the Chairman and the executive Director since 2000 and
was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 October 2011.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
development of the Group. He is instrumental in the formulation and
implementation of the business policies of the Group. Mr. Yeung was elected
the Honorary Fellowship 2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries, Directors of The Year Awards 2007 (executive Director):
Listed Companies (SEHK — Non Hang Seng Index Constituents) by The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. In 2014, he was awarded the University Fellow
of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, re-elected the Industrial Fellow of
Warwick University and the Medal of Honour (“M. H.") at the Seventeenth
Anniversary of the Establishment of the HKSAR. Mr. Yeung has over 40
years of experience in the electronics and acoustics industry. In addition,
Mr. Yeung is the Vice President of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association
of Hong Kong, the Chairman of Electronics and Telecommunications Training
Board of the Vocational Training Council, the Honorary Chairman of Hong
Kong Electronics Industries Association and the Honorary Chairman & the
Vice Chairman of Dongguan Electronics Industries Association, the Deputy
Supervisor and the President of Humen Branch of Dongguan City Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment respectively, the Honorary Director of
Yan Oi Tong, the Current Advisor of the Yan Chai Hospital Board Office and
also the Trustee of Bright Future Charitable Foundation. Mr. Yeung is the
father of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben, the executive Director of the Company.

Mr. YUEN Yee Sai, Simon, aged 74, is a co-founder of the Group. He has
been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive Director since 2000. Mr.
Yuen is responsible for the overall strategic planning of production and
operation related affairs of the Group. He was elected the Associateship
2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr.
Yuen has over 40 years of experience in the electronics industry and has
in depth knowledge of trading in the PRC. In addition, he is the executive
Director of the Association of Foreign Investment Enterprises of Dongguan
City, Honorary Citizen of Dongguan City and Humen Town, the Vice Chairman
of Dongguan Overseas Friendship Association. Mr. Yuen is the father of Mr.
Yuen Chi King, Wyman, the executive Director of the Company.

Mr. CHOW Man Yan, Michael, aged 67, is a co-founder of the Group. He
has been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive Director of the Group
since 2000. He is responsible for the overall strategic planning of related
affairs of the Group. Mr. Chow was elected the Associateship 2004 by The
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. He has over 40
years of experience in the electronics and acoustics industry, especially in
production and material management and inventory control. Mr. Chow is the
brother of Ms. Chow Lai Fung, the executive Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Director (Continued)

Mr. YUEN Chi King, Wyman, aged 41, is an executive Director of the Group.
Mr. Yuen joined the Group in August 2006 and is responsible for overseeing
the implementation of corporate strategy and the financial functions of the
Group. Mr. Yuen graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada with a
Bachelor degree of Commerce and from Saint Louis University, United States
of America with a Master degree of Finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yuen has worked for a few regional financial securities institutions and was
responsible for the provision of corporate finance advisory services. Mr. Yuen
has more than 9 years of experience in financial securities industry and he
is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Yuen is the son of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon, the Joint Deputy Chairman of
the Company.

Mr. YEUNG Siu Chung, Ben, aged 40, is an executive Director and Chief
Strategy Officer of the Group. In November 2002, Mr. Yeung joined Fujikon
Industrial Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, in which he served
in numerous sales and marketing and project management positions for
about 3 years. Mr. Yeung re-joined the Group as an executive Director in
August 2007 and is responsible for overseeing the business development
functions and implementing the corporate strategy of the Group. He holds a
Master of Business Administration degree from Yale University in the United
States of America and a Bachelor of Science degree in International Business
from Pepperdine University in the United States of America. Mr. Yeung has
more than 10 years of working experience in an engineering and marketing
capacity. Mr. Yeung was elected 2013 Young Industrialist Awards of Hong
Kong by Federation of Hong Kong Industries and awarded the Most Valuable
CIO by BT Media/CSDN in 2014. In addition, he is a member of the National
Committee of CPPCC of Sihui County, a member of Executive Committee of
the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council, a member of the Entrepreneurs’
Organization (EO), a member of the Youth Committee of Beijing Chinese
Overseas Friendship Association (Hong Kong), a member of the Youth Officer
of Hong Kong Wong Tai Sin Industry & Commerce Association and a member
of the Young Executive Council of Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He
is the son of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, who is the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Ms. CHOW Lai Fung, aged 52, is an executive Director of the Group. Ms.
Chow joined the Group in March 2001 and was appointed as executive
Director with effect from 1 August 2007. She is the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary of the Group. She graduated from the University of
Missouri- Kansas City, United States of America with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Accounting. She has over 20 years of experience in management,
accounting and finance. Ms. Chow is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She is the sister of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, the Joint
Deputy Chairman of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and-Senior- Management
EEREREEEERE

Independent non-executive Director

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of each of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company on 1 April
2014.

Dr. Chung holds a Doctor of Engineering Degree from the University of
Warwick, United Kingdom and a Doctor of Business Administration Degree
from City University of Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor
by the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in December 2015. Dr. Chung
was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration by the Lingnan
University in 2015, an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration by the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and an Honorary Doctorate Degree
by the University of Newcastle, New South Wales, Australia in 2006. He was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) Medal by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government on 1 July 2011. Dr. Chung was appointed
as Justice of Peace by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government on 1 July 2005 and won the Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Award in 1997. In November 2014, he was further awarded the Industrialist
of the Year.

Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to the advancement of industry. He was the
Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries from July 2011 to July
2013 and has been the Honorary President of the Federation since 5 July
2013. In addition, Dr. Chung holds positions on a number of Hong Kong SAR
Government advisory committees and is an active member of many social
committees and associations. Dr Chung is also the Founder and Chairman
of Bright Future Charitable Foundation, and whereby Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny, executive Director of the Company, is one of the trustees.

Dr. Chung is a Co-Founder and Non-Executive Director of Techtronic
Industries Company Limited (stock code: 669) and is also an Independent
Non-Executive Director of TK Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2283),
both listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Dr. Chung retired as an Independent Non-Executive Director of Kin Yat
Holdings Limited (stock code: 638) and KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3816) effective from 25 August 2014 and 27 August 2015 respectively.

Mr. CHE Wai Hang, Allen, aged 48, had been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company for 4 years since March 2000. In June 2005, Mr.
Che re-joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws from
The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Che was admitted as a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1993 and also became as a member of The
Law Society of Hong Kong in the same year. Mr. Che has been practicing as
a solicitor in Hong Kong over 20 years and is currently a partner of Wong,
Hui & Co., Solicitors.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Director (Continued)

Mr. LEE Yiu Pun, aged 54, has been an independent non-executive Director
since June 2005. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor of commerce degree majoring
in accounting and marketing from the University of Calgary, Canada. He
is currently a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Lee worked as the group financial controller of
S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited from 1994 to 1999, the financial controller
of Magician Industries (Holdings) Limited from 1999 to 2000, and deputy
finance director of Henderson China Holdings Limited from 2000 to 2001, all
of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee is currently
the vice president of finance of a private group of companies.

Senior Management
Mr. MAN Yu Ming, aged 76 is the Managing Director of Fujikon Packing
Material Company Limited. He joined the Group in July 1987.

Mr. CHEUNG Ying Chun, aged 63, is the Managing Director of Fujikon
Precision Metal Products Limited. He joined the Group in September 1988.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

The directors (the “Directors”) of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) have the pleasure of presenting the annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Principal activities and segment analysis of operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by segment
information is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business review

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development are set out in the sections
headed "“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 6 to 13 of this annual report.

The business operations and results may be affected by various factors. The
descriptions of principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, which are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 13 of this annual report. The
financial risk factors are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No important event affecting the Group that has occurred since the year-
ended date 31 March 2016.

A summary of the key performance indicators of the Group set out in the
section headed “Financial Highlights” on page 2 of this annual report.

Discussions on the environmental policies and performance, compliance with
the relevant local laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group and the account of the key relationships of the Group with employees,
customers and suppliers are set out in the section headed "Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 44 to 55 of this annual report.
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Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 59 of this annual report.

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share was paid during the
year. The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0
cents per ordinary share (the “Dividend”), which is subject to the approval
by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “Annual
General Meeting”). The Dividend is expected to be paid on 29 August 2016,
to those shareholders whose names appeared on the Register of Members of
the Company on 11 August 2016.

Other reserves

Movements in other reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share capital and share options

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in Notes 18 and 19, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 March 2016, the Company's reserves of approximately
HK$138,800,000 (subject to provisions of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended)) and retained earnings of approximately
HK$25,531,000 were available for distribution to the Company's
shareholders.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws (the
“Bye-Laws”) and the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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Report of the Directors

EEEWE

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$102,000.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Retirement schemes

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the Group's financial information for the last five financial
years is set out on pages 3 to 5 of this annual report.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon
Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael
Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman
Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben
Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

Pursuant to bye-law 99 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben, Ms.
Chow Lai Fung and Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy will retire from the office of
Directors by rotation at the Annual General Meeting. Such Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.
All the other Directors will remain in office.
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Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Independence of independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2016, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
the following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:
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Name of Directors interest of a trust corporations interest Total shareholding
EEpg BEngs s SEHEEER BEngs w5t BARRESL
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny oy 10,521,000 = 70,571,500 3,700,000 84,792,500 20.18%
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R4 1,000 = 64,571,500 4,110,000 68,682,500 16.35%
Chow Man Yan, Michael BX 8,355,000 = 70,571,5009 3,000,000 81,926,500 19.50%
Yuen Chi King, Wyman R - - - 4,420,000 4,420,000 1.05%
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben BOB - 70,571,500 - 4,020,000 74,591,500 17.75%
Chow Lai Fung AR 1,020,000 = = 3,000,000 4,020,000 0.96%

* The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of Shares in issue
(i.e. 420,193,000 ordinary shares) as at 31 March 2016.

* BERE DL TR R20165E3 A31H B 171D 2 & (8D
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Directors’ and chief executive's interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (Continued)

Interests in the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. The 70,571,500 Shares are held by Loyal Fair Group Limited, a private limited
company wholly owned by Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd, which was in turn wholly
owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited. Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd was the
trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then beneficially owned by the Yeung
Family Trust, a discretionary trust and the objects of which were the family
members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.
Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny.

2. The 64,571,500 Shares are held by Sky Talent Enterprises Limited, a private
limited company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

3. The 70,571,500 Shares are held by Asia Supreme Limited, a private limited
company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

4. Share options were granted to the Directors under the share option schemes
of the Company, details of which are separately disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Directors’ rights to acquire Shares or debentures” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31
March 2016.

Information on share option schemes

The Company adopted share option schemes under which it may grant
options to eligible participants (including executive Directors) to subscribe
for Shares in the Company. Details of the schemes are set out in Note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”).
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012,
an ordinary resolution was passed for the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) and the termination of the Old Scheme.
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Information on share option schemes (continued)

Subject to the exercise periods, all options (to the extent not already
exercised) granted prior to the termination of the Old Scheme shall continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Old Scheme. As at 31
March 2016, no options were granted under the New Scheme.

The principal terms of the New Scheme are as follows:

1. Purpose of the New Scheme

As incentive or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to
the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the New Scheme

Any eligible employee (whether full-time or part-time, including any
executive Director), any non-executive Director, any shareholder, any
supplier and any customer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest,
and any other party having contribution to the development of the
Group.

3. Total number of Shares available for issue under the New
Scheme and percentage to the issued share capital as at
31 March 2016

41,013,900 Shares (approximately 9.76% of the total issued share
capital).

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under the New
Scheme

Not exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being in any 12-month period. Any further grant of options in
excess of such limit must be separately approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.

5. The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

A period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the date of
offer of that option) to be determined and notified by the Directors to
the grantee thereof.
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Information on share option schemes (continued)

6.

24

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the New Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made

A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 on or before the
date of acceptance (which may not be later than 21 days from the date
of offer).

The basis of determining the exercise price
Being determined by the Directors and being not less than the highest

of:

a. the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

b.  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

¢.  the nominal value of the Shares.

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The New Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 August 2012 (being the date of fulfilment of all
conditions on the adoption of the New Scheme).
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Directors’ rights to acquire Shares or debentures

As at 31 March 2016, movements in the share options granted to and held
by the Directors under the Old Scheme of the Company were as follows:

Number of underlying Shares

Report of the Directors
EEE2RE

=B ARNDHES 2 ER
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REBEANRCEE  BTAUHE

ERAZBREZSHWT

RERGHE
Beginning Granted  Exercised Lapsed Subscription Exercise
of the during during during End of price Date of period
Name of Directors year the year the year the year the year  per Share grant (dd/mm/yyyy) ~ Note
Espg £ EARY  FRTE FRXN ER BRABE R4EH TERE  WE
000 000 000 000 000 (HKS) (B/R/%)
Tk T T Tk T (B7)
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 15518 3,700 = o = 3,700 1.98 221572007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 1
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R 3,700 = o = 3,700 1.98 221572007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 1
410 - - - 40 110 28312012 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2022 1
Chow Man Yan, Michael ~ E3C1= 3,000 - - - 3,000 198 22052007 221052008 - 21/05/2017 1
Yuen Chi King, Wyman B 400 - - - 400 198 22/52007 221052008 - 21/05/2017 1
2,020 - - - 2,020 110 281312012 2810312013 - 27/03/2022 1
2,000 - - - 2,000 110 281312012 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2022 2
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben BOE 2,020 = s = 2,020 110 281312012 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2022 1
2,000 = = = 2,000 110 281312012 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2022 2
Chow Lai Fung FER 1,000 = o = 1,000 110 281312012 2810312013 - 27/03/2022 1
2,000 = = = 2,000 110 28/3/2012 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2022 2
Total: @it 22,250 - - - 22,250
Notes: BiEE

(1) The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.
(2)  The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date of grant.

(3)  Details of other movement of share options held by employees include employees
of the Company and of its subsidiaries working under employment contract with
the Company or its subsidiaries which are regarded as “continuous contracts”
for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements on page
105 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable any of the Directors or the Company’s chief executive to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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EEEWE

Directors’ interests in contracts

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which any of the Directors or the Company’s chief executive had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Substantial shareholders’ interests in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company

The following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares at 31 March 2016 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary Shares in
issue which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.

EENEHNP R

B EMBMRMEMMBEEZBEALRRSIN R
FRENFEAEMRER - AR B REAAH B AR
WERAEE 2 EBRTEMNETHARR T EITH
ANEEEREZEREEARRZEERN -

Y|

FERRRALXTA RO REBERD 2B

ATAL(WIERRRIESHEEITHAE)R20165F3
F31B#A D 8T E A% A £ 2 B RABR D
ZETmEOKE - MEREEF KBS K EXVEE2
MEIDHAARREE  WABKALRRREES
M B IEFIE33615FE 2 B -

*Approximate
percentage of

Name of shareholders Number of Shares Capacity  Note interest

REREHE RHEE 54 ME “BARBZEDHL

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited 64,571,500 Beneficial owner 2 15.37%
ERBEAA

Asia Supreme Limited 70,571,500 Beneficial owner 3 16.80%
ERBEAA

Loyal Fair Group Limited 70,571,500 Beneficial owner 4 16.80%
EREAA

Golden Hope Financial Limited 70,571,500 Interest of controlled corporation 4 16.80%
HPEhEE 2

Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd 70,571,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 4 16.80%
EREAGEBETEARIN)

Encyclia Investments (PTC) Limited 70,571,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 5 16.80%
ERRAGEBEFEARN)

Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen 84,792,500 Interest of spouse 6 20.18%
BRBEBEZ L fefB 2

Ms. Leung Woon Yee 68,682,500 Interest of spouse 7 16.35%
REL BB 2 s

Ms. Cai Liting 81,926,500 Interest of spouse 8 19.50%
BBt [

Ms. Zong Xiao Cui 74,591,500 Interest of spouse 9 17.75%
RNBELE [N X

Mr. David Michael Webb 9,796,000 Beneficial owner 2.33%
BREAA

Mr. David Michael Webb 27,964,000 Interest of controlled corporation 10 6.66%
SPEEE 2w

Preferable Situation Assets Limited 27,964,000 Beneficial owner 10 6.66%

BERBEEA

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of Shares in issue
(i.e. 420,193,000 ordinary shares) as at 31 March 2016.
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Substantial shareholders’ interests in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company (cContinued)

Notes:

Interests in the Shares and the underlying Shares stated above represented long
positions.

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

Asia Supreme Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

Loyal Fair Group Limited was wholly owned by Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd,
which was in turn wholly owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited. Silverfun
Property (PTC) Ltd was the trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then
beneficially owned by the Yeung Family Trust, a discretionary trust and the
objects of which were the family members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny,
including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben. Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly
owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.

Encyclia Investments (PTC) Limited was the trustee of Yeung Family Trust, a
discretionary trust and the objects of which were the family members of Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen is the wife of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.

Ms. Leung Woon Yee is the wife of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

Ms. Cai Liting is the wife of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

Ms. Zong Xiao Cui is the wife of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

These Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which was owned by Mr. David Michael Webb. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. David Michael Webb was deemed to be interested in all the Shares

held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited. Mr. David Michael Webb had an
aggregate interest in 37,760,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, there was
no other person who had an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 March 2016.
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Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 64.7% of the Group’s total revenue and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 22.5% of the
Group's total purchases. The largest customer to the Group accounted for
approximately 19.3% of the Group's total revenue. None of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) of the
Company had an interest in these five largest customers and/or these five
largest suppliers.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s financial statements for
the financial year ended 31 March 2016 and is of the opinion that such
statements comply with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the requirements of applicable laws, codes and regulations and
that adequate disclosure pursuant thereto have been made.

Public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board,

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate governance practices

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and endeavours in following the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) of the “Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has complied with
the CG Code save for the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1, which is
explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Board of Directors

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategies,
the setting of appropriate strategic policies, monitoring and controlling
the operation and financial performance of the Group, oversight of the
compliance with statutory and regulatory obligation.

The management of the Group, as delegated by the Board, is responsible for
execution of business strategies adopted, implementation of adequate system
and procedures of internal control and risk management, and oversight of
the day-to-day management of the Group's business.

To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed
manner, management provides the Board with Monthly Management Report
which contains year-to-date with summaries of financial performance and key
events of the Group. The Monthly Management Report gives board members
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board members to
discharge their duties.

The corporate governance duties are performed by the Board. Pursuant
to the terms of reference of the Board, the primary duties of the Board in
relation to corporate governance include introducing and proposing relevant
principles concerning corporate governance and reviewing and determining
the corporate governance policy, so as to enhance and to ensure the
corporate governance practices in the Group are in line with the relevant
requirements.

EREARE

ERERER
EERFHERDENCRESL YR NEREES
BMAXSHARDA(BMRAM)ES EWRAT L
WA MK AFER 2 [ R EERTA ) ([ DRERT
1))z SR (TS RIS D) -

REZE2016F3A31MHIEFEAN » ARG —HEFHE
ERTEI HSFRAMEXEA2 VG BFTREE - FEBER
TXEBEE -

T 77

EEE

EERE

EXCRABIRIOERE  FIVAERMMERR &
REEHARE 2 2ERMBERE  AREREBTX
ERERMELE

AEEEREEXEFERR AEHTRRMZER
REE - BieEENANEZERERERN RS MEF
URERARBEBZAEERE

RERESGENABERTITEEES  BEER
EXeRHUEEAR  NBAKESHVBERRER
NEBFBEZEE EREABRKREFEXNERMHAR
AMRR - ARMASHERER  REFEXEE
HAERAIEFOFHARBITREZBE -

CEEARENEFTERT REEFS2RESR
B BFEERCEEAZIBRABKEIAREZRN
BAEXERBERNREERHIECEEARE - AN
BYRASBEELREAERTEMEEMRE -

2015/2016 F 3R




Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

The Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors during the year under review and up
to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman

Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben

Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy

Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

The brief biographical information of each Director is set out in the
"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” section in this
annual report. Save as disclosed therein, there is no other relationship (whether
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships) among
the members of the Board.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in
August 2013. The Board recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of the Company’s performance. A truly
diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills,
industry experience, educational background, knowledge, expertise, culture,
age and gender and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
All Board appointments will be based on merit while taking into account
diversity. The Nomination Committee and the Board will review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure it continued effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and review annually on measurable
objectives for implementing diversity on the Board and recommend them to
the Board for adoption.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board met the requirement of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one third of the Board and at least
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific
term of one year. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Re-election of members of the Board

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company (the "Bye-Laws”). According to Bye-
Law 99, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben, Ms. Chow
Lai Fung and Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy will retire by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, to offer themselves for re-election.

Brief biographical details of the Directors who will be proposed for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting are set out on pages 14 to 17.

Insurance

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover for the Directors in
respect of legal actions taken against the Directors. The Board reviews the
extent of the insurance cover every year.

Board and Committee attendance

Each year, regular matters reserved for the Board include overall strategies
of the Group, annual budgets, financial statements, dividend policy,
corporate governance function and other major corporate activities. For
such purposes, the regular Board meetings are held four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board meetings of the year are
scheduled in advance. Notices and accompanying board papers are circulated
with sufficient time to allow the Directors to prepare before meetings.

According to the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings. In the 2015 annual
general meeting, all Directors, including the Chairman of the Board, and
the external auditor of the Company attended the meeting and answered
shareholders’ questions.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Board and Committee attendance (Continued)

During the year, the Board held four meetings mainly to discuss and approve
the overall strategies of the Group; to review and monitor the financial
performance of the Group; to consider and approve the annual budgets, the
financial reports and corporate governance related policies of the Group.
The chairman of the Board also met with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of executive Directors.

Details of the attendance of each of the Directors at board meetings,
committee meetings and annual general meeting held for the year ended 31
March 2016 are set out in the table below:

i

et

B
BEEeRZESCHEBR(E)

RER EFTERTTHUALE  TEFmAEER
EECEEBRE BEMERAEEZUBERIR  E
BEMAEREBE 2 FERE UBRERDEE RN
BABR - EESEENERNRERTESIEZB/R
TEHBFEHITEESMHE -

i

REZE2016F3A31BLFE S ESHFEEESTE
F ZEeoRMRRBEREZHBHINTE

No. of meetings attended/held

HEBITEERE
2015 Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee  Committee Meeting

2015F R
EEps Exg BEXKZEE FHEEE REZEES BEXRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 15 R S A 4/4 - 111 11 1
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R T A48 4 A 4/4 - - - 11
Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael BAx{—4h4t 4/4 - - - 11
Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman TRFERSE A 4/4 - - - 111
Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben IR A 4/4 - - - 171
Ms. Chow Lai Fung FARREZL 4/4 - - - 111
Independent non-executive B I FEHITES

Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy EETELT 4/4 313 11 11 11
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen BEELEE 4/4 313 11 11 11
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun R S A 4/4 313 11 11 111
Note: BIEE

During the year, a meeting was held between the chairman and the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of other executive Directors.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Directors’ Training

To assist the Directors to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, all Directors had attended
relevant seminar and courses. The costs for such training are borne by the
Company.

During the year, the Company had arranged in-house training programmes
conducted by international audit firm and government bodies for the
Directors with an emphasis on latest development regarding the Listing
Rules, other applicable legislative/regulatory compliance on money
laundering, risk management and internal control.

Directors attended seminars/conferences/forums relevant to his/her
professional duties as directors or self-study of the publications issued by the
regulators, professional bodies and corporate lawyers during the year ended
31 March 2016.

Directors have participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and have provided a record of
training they received during the year ended 31 March 2016 to the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, the chairman of the Company, is also the chief
executive officer of the Company. According to the Code Provision A.2.1,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. In view of that Mr. Yeung
has extensive experience in the electronics and acoustics industry and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business development of
the Group. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in Mr. Yeung provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership to improve the Company’s efficiency in decision-making
and execution, and effectively capture business opportunities. However, the
Board will periodically review the effectiveness of this arrangement and
consider to separate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer when
it thinks appropriate.

The responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer are as
follows:

The chairman is responsible to determine the overall strategic planning
and business development of the Group after consultation with the Board,
provide leadership for the Board on corporate and strategic planning, ensure
proper proceedings of the Board and encourage all Directors to have active
contribution to the Board's affairs. With the support from the Board’s
members, he manages to implement the major strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board.

The chief executive officer, with support of the executive Directors, is
to manage and operate the Group's day-to-day business, including the
implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.
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Board Committees

The Board has three committees, namely, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee. All the Board committees
are empowered by the Board under their own terms of reference which have
been posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive Directors, as
follows:

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun (Chairman)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

A revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been adopted by
the Company during the year to align with the recent amendments to the
CG Code. The Audit Committee provides an important link between the
Board and the Company's auditors in matters coming within the scope of the
group audit. Its duties are mainly to review the Company's financial reports,
make recommendations on the appointment, removal and remuneration of
independent auditor, approve audit and audit-related services, supervise the
Company's internal financial reporting procedures and management policies,
and review the Company'’s risk management and internal control systems as
well as the internal audit function.

During the year, the Audit Committee held three meetings and conducted the
following activities:

(1) to review the results announcements, financial statements, interim and
annual reports of the Company, with a recommendation to the Board
for approval;

(2)  to review the Group’s financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems;

(3) to review the risk management policy, risk register and internal audit
year plan of the Group;

(4) to review the internal control, risk management and financial matters
of the Group in pursuance of the terms of reference;

(5) to make recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
auditors of the Company; and

(6) to review and recommend the Board to approve the revised terms of
reference of audit committee according to the latest CG Code.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen (Chairman)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

The duties of Remuneration Committee are clearly defined in its terms of
reference which have been prepared and adopted according to the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the review and
determination of the remuneration policies and packages for Directors
and senior management of the Company. The remuneration packages of
the executive Directors are stipulated in their service agreements with
the Company. Such packages, including basic salaries, director’s fee
and discretionary bonus, are determined by reference to their duties,
responsibilities and experience, prevailing market conditions and their
expected time spent and contributions on the affairs of the Company. The
emoluments of the independent non-executive Directors are determined with
regard to their estimated time spent on the affairs of the Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting and conducted
the following activities:

—  to consider and approve the remuneration packages for each of the
independent non-executive Directors; and

- to review and approve the remuneration packages for each of the
Directors and senior management of the Company.
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Board Committees (cContinued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy

Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

According to the terms of reference, the Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board
at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors taking into account the independence requirements
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; to make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive, including but not limited to, the policy concerning
the diversity of Board members, and the measurable objectives for
implementing such policy.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held a meeting and conducted
the following activities:

to review of the structure, size and composition of the Board;
—  to review the Board Diversity Policy and its measurable objective;

—  to review the independence of all independent non-executive Directors;
and

—  to consider and make recommendation to the Board on the re-election
of Directors for re-election by shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.
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Company Secretary

Ms. Chow Lai Fung is the Company Secretary of the Company and she is also
an executive Director of the Company. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the Board process, as well as communication among Board
members, with Shareholders and management. During the year, Company
Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

Auditor’s remuneration

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company,
provided both audit and non-audit services to the Company for a total
remuneration of approximately HK$2,275,000. The relevant fee paid for
audit services amounted to approximately HK$1,630,000. The balance of the
remuneration related to the non-audit services which mainly included the
review of interim results, amounting to approximately HK$206,000; taxation
services, amounting to approximately HK$318,000; and other non-audit
services, amounting to approximately HK$121,000.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for the overseeing adequate internal control and
risk management procedures to identify and manage the risk faced by the
Group, as well as ensure the shareholders’ investment and the Company’s
assets are properly safeguarded.

In view of the requirement in the Listing Rules in relation to the new code
provisions on risk management which took effect in 2016, the Company has
adopted a Risk Management Policy in March 2016. The Board has delegated
the Audit Committee with authority and responsibility to oversee the overall
management of risks and report the results to the Board. In March 2016,
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee were updated to formally
incorporate risk management into its scope of duties. The Company compiles
a risk register and monitors it on an on-going basis by taking into account
emerging issues and also will be reviewed annually.

A sound and effective system of internal control procedures is in place.
The system of internal control is designed to manage the risk of failure
to achieve corporate objectives and provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group through the Audit Committee and the internal
audit team of the Company. The Board has also considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
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Securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors and senior management of the Group on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (“Model Code"). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, all Directors and senior management
of the Group have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors and senior management throughout the year ended 31 March
2016.

The Board has also established procedures for relevant employees, including
certain employees of the Company, certain directors or employees of it
subsidiaries who are considered to be likely to possess inside information in
relation to the Company or its securities (the “Relevant Employees”), in
respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

Disclosure obligations regarding Inside Information

In light of the disclose obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") with effect from 1 January
2013, the Board has established the following processes and procedures
across all relevant division(s) and department(s) of the Group for complying
with the disclosure obligations regarding “Inside Information”:

(i)  the processes for identifying, assessing and escalating potential inside
information to the Board; and

(ii)  the responsibilities of officers in preserving the confidentiality of inside
information, escalating upwards any such potential information and
cascading down the message and responsibilities to relevant staff.

Directors’ and Auditor’s responsibilities for financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of financial
statements of the Group.

The responsibilities of the independent auditor of the Company are set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report to the shareholders of the Company on
pages 56 to 57 of this annual report.
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Shareholders’ Right

1. Procedures for convening special general meeting on
requisition

1.1

Shareholders have the right to requisition the Company to
convene a special general meeting in the manner prescribed by
and set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act.

Bye-Law 62 provides “The Board may, whenever it thinks
fit, convene a special general meeting, and special general
meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by
the Companies Act, and, in default, may be convened by the
requisitionists.” Pursuant to section 74 of the Companies Act,
Shareholders (“General Meeting Requisitionists”) holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
may requisition the Directors of the Company to forthwith proceed
duly to convene a special general meeting by depositing a written
requisition (“General Meeting Requisition”) at the registered
office of the Company.

The General Meeting Requisition must state the purpose of
the meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at
the meeting), and must be signed by the General Meeting
Requisitionists; the General Meeting Requisition may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
General Meeting Requisitionists.

The General Meeting Requisition shall be deposited at the
registered office and preferably, copied to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company and marked for the
attention of the board of Directors or the Company Secretary at
their respective address below:

Registered office of the Company

Canon's Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Head office and principal place of business of the Company
16th Floor, Tower 1

Grand Central Plaza

138 Shatin Rural Committee Road

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary
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Shareholders’ Right (continued)

1. Procedures for convening special general meeting on
requisition (Continued)

1.5 If the Directors fails to proceed to duly convene such meeting
within 21 days from the date of the deposit of General Meeting
Requisition as set out in the paragraph 1.2 above, the General
Meeting Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one half of their total voting rights, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of
the General Meeting Requisition. A meeting so convened by the
General Meeting Requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Directors.

1.6 Any reasonable expenses incurred by the General Meeting
Requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Board to duly
convene a meeting shall be repaid to the General Meeting
Requisitionists by the Company.

2. Procedures for raising enquiries

2.1 Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
details of which are as follows:

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Address: 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555
Fax: (852) 2529 6087

2.2 Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of the
Company at the following designated contacts, correspondence
addresses, email addresses and enquiry hotlines of the Company:

Address: 16th Floor, Tower 1, Grand Central Plaza,
138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: cosec@fujikon.com ir@fujikon.com
(Company Secretary) (Investor Relations)

Tel: (852) 2605 5008 (852) 2688 8287

Fax: (852) 2694 1338 (852) 2694 1338
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Shareholders’ Right (continued)

2.

Procedures for raising enquiries (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Shareholders are encouraged to make enquires via the online
enquiry form available on the Company’s website at www.fujikon.
com.

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with
their detailed contact information for the prompt response from
the Company if it deems appropriate.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

3.1

3.2

Section 79 of the Companies Act provides that, at the expense of
the Resolution Requisitionists (as defined in paragraph 3.2 below)
unless the Company otherwise resolves, it shall be the duty of
the Company on the requisition in writing by the Resolution
Requisitionists:

(a) to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

(b) to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting sent to them any statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

"Resolution Requisitionists” means Shareholders making a
requisition under paragraph 3.1 above and shall constitute either:

(@) any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates; or

(b)  not less than one hundred Shareholders.
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Shareholders’ Right (continued)

3.

42

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting (Continued)

3.3

3.4

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any
such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders entitled to
have notice of the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the
resolution or statement on each such Shareholder in any manner
permitted for service of notice of the meeting, and notice of any
such resolution shall be given to any other Shareholder by giving
notice of the general effect of the resolution in any manner
permitted for giving him notice of meeting of the Company,
provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of
the resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same
manner and, so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of
the meeting and, where it is not practicable for it to be served
or given at that time, it shall be served or given as soon as
practicable thereafter.

Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to be
met before the Company is bound to give any notice of resolution
or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to section 80 of the
Companies Act, the Company shall not be bound to give notice
of any resolution or to circulate any statement as mentioned in
paragraph 3.1 above unless:—

(@) a copy of the requisition signed by the Resolution
Requisitionists, or two or more copies which between them
contain the signatures of all the Resolution Requisitionists,
is deposited at the registered office of the Company:—

(i) in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting;
and

(ii) in the case of any other requisition, not less than one
week before the meeting; and

(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expense in
giving effect to the procedures in paragraph 3.1 above
(i.e. the giving of notice of resolution and/or circulation of
statement).

Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring notice
of a resolution has been deposited at the registered office of
the Company, an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy though
not deposited within the above-mentioned time shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Shareholders’ Right (continued)

4. Procedures for propose a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to Bye-law 103, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person
to stand for election as a Director at any general meeting appointed for
such election shall follow the procedures as prescribed in Bye-law 103.
Details of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are
available on the websites of the Company.

The relevant procedures are set out in the document titled “Shareholders’
Rights” and “Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a director” which are available on the websites of the Company.

Relations with Shareholders

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
The Company also holds regular meetings with institutional shareholders.

To ensure effective communication with shareholders, the Company
has adopted a formal shareholder communication policy to ensure that
Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance
and risk profile), in order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment community
to engage actively with the Company.

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.fujikon.com) to keep its
Shareholders and the investing public posted of the Company’s business
developments and operations, list of Directors and their roles and functions,
constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its committees,
procedures of nomination of directors for election, shareholders’ rights and
communication policy, corporate governance practices, announcements,
circulars and reports released to the Stock Exchange and other information
are posted. Information on the Company’s website will be updated from time
to time.

The Company’s annual general meeting is one of the important platforms to
communication with the shareholders. The Annual General Meeting will be
held at 16th Floor, Tower I, Grand Central Plaza, 138 Shatin Rural Committee
Road, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong on 5 August 2016. The full text of
the resolutions and explanatory notes in respect of the meeting are contained
in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. All Shareholders are invited to
attend the Annual General Meeting and participate in communicating with
the Company.

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE-HERELGRSE

Fujikon is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, marketing and
trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other electronic
products. Since its establishment, Fujikon has been pursuing excellence
as an innovator with the goal of becoming a leading global electro-
acoustic group. In recent years, close attention was paid to corporate
governance, environmental protection, product safety and staff benefits
by the government, consumers, clients, investors and employees. By
continuously leveraging its edge in innovative technology with flexibility and
enhancing its strength in research and development, Fujikon continues to
consolidate its position in the high-end products market. Moreover, Fujikon
attaches great importance to safeguarding employee rights and interests
and protecting the ecological environment, and warmheartedly supports
social welfare development. As a leading enterprise in the industry, Fujikon
upholds the spirit of a caring society, spares no efforts in performing its
corporate social responsibilities, complying with laws and regulations of
Hong Kong and China, and dedicating itself to improvement in areas such as
operations governance, environmental protection and energy conservation,
workplace and contribution to society, so as to lay a solid foundation for the
sustainable development of the Company.

Environmental Protection

As resources available in the world are getting scarce, environmental
protection and energy conservation have become major issues in the
sustainable development of a company. As a company advocating going
green, the Group spares no efforts in emission reduction and energy
conservation by successively introducing a number of environmental
protection measures to mitigate the environmental impacts caused by its
everyday operations.

Emission reduction

The headsets and headphones plants have established a comprehensive
management system pursuant to the “Electronic Industry Code of Conduct”
to formulate guidelines on reducing all kinds of emissions. We strictly
comply with national emission standards, as well as actively introducing
emission abatement technology and equipment. During the financial year,
we commissioned experts to examine the amount of greenhouse gases,
substances including organotin and their chemical compounds emitted, with
which all results were below the local standards of Guangdong Province.

Exhaust gases from operations of the headsets and headphones plants
are mainly sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide emitted by generators with
emissions of 3 mg/m® and 56 mg/m? respectively. Other exhaust gases
include soot, with emissions of 2.29 mg/m?.

The greenhouse gases emitted mainly resulted from electricity consumption
of our plants, emissions of commercial vehicles and operation of air-
conditioning system, with emissions of 9,464 tons in this financial year. We
have planned to install additional equipment in air-conditioning system with
expectation of further reducing 1.4% emissions of greenhouse gases.
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Environmental Protection (Continued)

Emission reduction (Continued)

The headsets and headphones plants have introduced a circulating water
treatment system to reduce the amount of waste water, which are mainly
discharged from oil injection operation. Meanwhile, we also regularly
examined all kinds of sewage indicators in waterspouts of plant area and
staff dormitory to ensure water quality meets the national standards.

Harmless solid wastes produced annually by the headsets and headphones
plants are mainly shredded plastic scraps and garbage, which are all
recyclable. We handled all waste and garbage with classification, and all
paper, plastics, metal and wooden boards retrieved will be reused without
exception. At the same time, our plants strictly observed state guidelines to
safely transfer hazardous substances like used oil and thinner pursuant to
“Management Regulation on Hazardous Wastes Manifests” (/&3 EEHEd
BB E B A ) ), so as to avoid impacts to the environment. Besides, we
have plans to improve sewage filtration process to reduce sewage discharge
by increasing the number of recycling.

The emission and discharge of exhaust, sewage and waste materials by the
headsets and headphones plants for the year ended 31 March 2016 are
showed below:
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Annual Emissions

Emission Types in 2015/16

PER R 2015/16 FEHHME

1. Greenhouse gas emissions (mainly from electricity consumption of the plants, emissions of 9,464 tons
commercial vehicles and operation of air-conditioning system)

AEREHR(F2REREIRNAE  BAHELEAEH) 9,464

2. Organotin and its compounds
HRELCEY
3. Sewage disposal (mainly from spraying water and cleaning waste)

KB RR (2 222K 8 M 2 BE K KB R RE K )

4. Hazardous waste disposal (mainly from used oil barrels, oil wiping gloves, lamp waste, used ink

slag, paint residue and used oil)

BEEBEMBIR(ERREEHRT  MEKMTE  BEE - BHEE - BHARE  BEKE)

0.000375 mg/m?
0.000375= 5% M 5 K

24 m?
2437 77K

7.92 tons

7.9203
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Environmental Protection (Continued)

Energy conservation

The headsets and headphones plants actively worked in line with national
environmental policy in aspect of energy conservation. On top of seminars
and notices to enhance awareness of energy conservation among staff,
we particularly established an energy conservation steering group, which
is responsible for preparation of corporate energy conservation plans,
technological transformation plans and energy-saving objectives, so as
to enhance outcomes of energy conservation on all aspects. For example,
measures like extensive use of energy-saving LED lamps, replacement
of production units with energy-saving type, minimising usage of air-
conditioners by more natural ventilation, as well as taking full advantage
of natural light have been widely adopted. In this financial year, we
focused on the transformation of injection molding machines by introducing
electromagnetic heating devices, successfully reducing energy consumption
by 22.5%. In addition, the headsets and headphones plants have mapped
out measures to implement the replacement of old energy consuming motors
in 2016, with expectation of further reducing electricity consumption by
232,782 kilowatts and energy consumption by 1.5%. All pipes are regularly
examined to make sure there is no wastage due to leakage, while our
staff is motivated to save water. For the year ended 31 March 2016, the
headsets and headphones plants consumed electricity 15,020,800 kilowatts,
diesel fuel 2,120 liters, coal gas 24,277 kg and water 172,891 m3. Being an
original design/original equipment manufacturer in headsets and headphones
business, all packaging design for our products is prescribed by customers.
Nevertheless, the Company will make an effort in design and production
process to minimise the consumption of materials.

Treasure our environment and resources

Over the years we strictly abided by national laws and industry norms to
actively enhance environmental benefits in the course of production process,
achieving significant outcomes. Our headsets and headphones business also
devoted to research and development of innovative technology, so that
product quality will be upgraded and energy consumption in manufacturing
process will be reduced. Our products and production facilities have obtained
ISO14001 international environmental management system certification.

Meanwhile, we accelerated the elimination of high energy consuming old
motors and old injection molding machines, and actively used eco-friendly
equipment instead. By strictly monitoring and evaluation of the effectiveness
of environmental protection measures, we ensure the compliance with
regulatory rules and requirements. We also formulated the “Emergency
Management Procedures” and carefully assessed our production process
in respect of all potential impacts and risks on the environment, so that
troubles can be prevented in advance.
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Workplace Quality

We believe a harmonious workplace helps enhance employee performance
and company-employee relationship, which are especially crucial to the
sustainable development of the Company. As a result, in aspects such as
compensation package, workplace safety training and employee rights
and interests, the Group strives to build a quality workplace featuring a
developed system. The Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and Hong
Kong Productivity Council named the Group a “Happy Company” in three
consecutive years from the financial years 2013/14 to 2015/16 to commend
the achievements made by the Group in building a happy workplace.

Working conditions

As at 31 March 2016, the Fujikon Group had a total of 4,244 full-time
employees mainly from Hong Kong and Mainland China with the gender
ratio of 1 male to 2.25 females. The Group strictly carried out labour laws
of Hong Kong and China, and offered female employees protection of lawful
rights and interests according to labour regulations. The Group established a
competitive remuneration and benefit system on the basis of factors such as
market pay trend, position, skill requirements and performance. In respect of
recruitment, we ensure fair and equitable process without any discrimination,
with employment depends solely on capacity regardless of gender. The Group
also established a performance appraisal system and a promotion mechanism,
under which eminent employees will get promotion. Besides, outstanding
employees at all levels will be appreciated in the form of remuneration, bonus,
incentive and other benefits. The Group attached great importance to orderly
schedule of work and rest among our staff and arranged rest time for different
employees in accordance with their work allocation.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HERERRS

THREER

BMARENREREOITEREENRABEIRI « 75
ANEARHEETNER  HEERBRELHEE
Z oo Al - AEBRFHHAES BEEIIREEER
EEFEEF  BHEEHETENEEIERE -
F2013/14ZE2015M16 T BFE - ASBEE = AFE
BEFBREEHESRESEENRERTAIFAL
¥ EHOAEAKSEELEMRIERESIEMAK
gg °

THRE

72016F3A31H - BT SEEEEBE T ASH
4,244\ - BLETLHHIAIL225A(S ) BT *
DREAFBERPEARM - AEBHERITESRTEH
NS TEN @ RRBREEBERAETREES Z S
RIE - AEBERBETISEHMBE - Eiu - FeEERK
ITHEEBREARGITAMSRFHIOTHEFGE -
EHREFEBNERAFALE » TFEEEMER @ T
SRR AEBEREVEMERFERE
Fgs B TR ERHESH o 1o - BRMES
BEHW - AL - BEREMEBN  RETRABEEL
MEHMERER : SEFETERETIESRFRF  TRHEH
ZEBIeRBIEDIRELHHIRBRM -

A B3
o >3

38 1 2016 @
ja— W RIERER AT
q n E’n::?? i
L o s
< Vi R ARA THohE,

AT EmseRETRL ¥R wAARS

N \:x _r,,N;f-C:\. ANTRmRE-cTy -
-

= - J:

AN
[CeCrtE e e

ELtEEZERERAT 47




Environmental, Social and Governance -Report
RE - HERERRE

Workplace Quality (Continued)

Working conditions (Continued)

FUIIKON
INDUSTRIAL ””"]'H“HR\

AMMLUAL THENER 3uai

We regularly held various employee activities, such as Christmas party,
Annual Dinner, Chinese New Year festive party, so as to enhance team
spirit and create a harmonious atmosphere. Moreover, particularly for those
domestic employees resided in plant area, we held various entertaining
activities including Sport Day, birthday parties, Mid-Autumn gala evening
and recreational activities celebrating local festivals, with objectives to
help employees from different provinces to integrate into community life
of the Fujikon Group and be dedicated to work. Last year, we organised a
team to participate in “Happy Chef Competition” hosted by the Promoting
Happiness Index Foundation. Our employees were congratulated by winning
the championship and the Most Delicious Prize in the final, needless to say
all the joyful moments during the competition.
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Workplace Quality (Continued)

Working conditions (Continued)

-

With consistent pursuit of transparent and open-minded management, the
Group not only undertook surveys to collect employees’ precious opinion
on a regular basis, but also established a labour union in accordance with
domestic laws, by which meetings are arranged so that senior management
of the Company can hear the voice of employees. In our efforts, employees
interactively communicated with the management in a usual way and good
relations have been established.
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Workplace Quality (Continued)

Working conditions (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded an average monthly
staff turnover of 8.67%. As at 31 March 2016, the basic information on
current employees by position, education and age is as follows:

THERBRERER(E)
THBR(E)

HE2016F3831BIEFE  A&EBETHAFHR
KERA)H8.67% o 201653 A31 BIRBEER - #HE
BE - FRBISMERMETIENERAT :

128

By position

gy 2Vl by

109

By education

RABRES D

203

Managers or above 2 .89, University or above 4 .89, Below 20
BIRMIA EAE ARE A L 20BRIA T
73 .39, Supervisory staff - 49, College 57 /%, 20 -below 35
BEBEAR A=H 20-35%%
73.7%  General staff 28 .79, Middle school 39 99,  35-below 50
N hE 35-50%
2 .6%  Primary school 2.6% 50 orabove
aN-- 5057 A £
Health and Safety BEEZE

Fujikon treats occupational safety and health of its employees very seriously
and undertakes to build a safe workplace with highest standards. The
Group strictly complies with Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of
Hong Kong and industrial safety regulations of China, regularly assessing
each production process and relevant equipment for any potential security
risks, which will be followed up and resolved with no exception. Besides,
necessary precautions were established and additional protection facilities
were installed, thus comprehensively safeguarding health and safety of our
employees. On top of that, occupational health examinations were provided
to relevant employees according to the needs of their posts. Regarding
office staff, we specially arranged regular examination of the display screens
pursuant to local regulations and guidelines to ensure compliance with
health standards.
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Workplace Quality (Continued)
Health and Safety (Continued)

The Group provided employees with different kinds of occupational
safety trainings based on operational needs. Other than safety rules and
regulations, operating instructions and incident handling process notified in
orientation, employees received regular safety trainings during their terms.
In addition, we promoted safety awareness and information of occupational
safety and health by internal newsletter, notice board, posters and other
means, so that employees stood together and worked to build a safe and
healthy working environment. Last year, the Group's subsidiaries recorded a
total of 16 employees injured at work, to whom proper follow-ups have been
provided. Zero industrial accident is always our ultimate goal and we pledge
to continue our unsparing efforts.

Training and development

Every year, in addition to relevant training programs drew up by the Group
according to development strategies of its subsidiaries, each of department
heads assesses the development needs of employees, while local human
resources departments approve and arrange corresponding trainings, so as
to enhance knowledge and skills of our employees. Besides basic orientation,
we formulate future development programs for our employees based on their
performance by specially providing them with various professional trainings,
including in-house trainings and subsidised external trainings. Other than on-the-
job training, the Group provided employees with 45 different kinds of trainings
in this financial year, with 2,889 participants and a total of 8,701 training hours.

Labour standards

The Group respects the rights of all of its employees. Concrete measures
were implemented under the principals of safeguarding equal opportunities
in employment pursuant to labour legislations in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. Minors under the age of 16 will not be employed and organisations
with child labour or forced labour will be rejected from our business
dealings. The policy on “Prohibition of Discrimination and Harassment” was
formulated to prohibit the Group from forcing employees to work by way of
violence or other means of illegal restriction of personal freedom.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HERERRE

Operations Governance
Supply chain management

The Headset and Headphones Business puts a high premium on supplier
management and monitoring. In strictly conformity with its “Procedures on
Purchasing Control and Supplier Management”, assessments on suppliers’
performance are carried out by relevant departments on a regular basis
to ensure their materials meets quality and safety standards, as well as
preventing their operations from having negative impacts on the environment
and society. All new suppliers must be reviewed on environmental
management, and only those come up to the standard will be adopted.
During the financial year, a total of 78 suppliers, accounting for 14% of
the total number, were assessed. We also conducted risk assessments to
suppliers, cutting down or terminating cooperation in case of violations.

Information on suppliers of headsets and headphones plants by region is as
follows:

China
I
No. of suppliers} 17.5%  Hong Kong
fPERIB oo
555 1.1% T;l/v%van

Other regions

Hit i

Product quality, safety and control

The headsets and headphones business is committed to providing customers
with quality and safe products. A comprehensive social responsible system
has been established according to “Electronic Industry Code of Conduct”,
under which relevant policies on product health and safety, intellectual
property and privacy security are formulated. All of our products are tested
and labelled exhaustively in strict accordance with customer requirements
and international standards.

We rigorously administers all stages of product manufacturing and
has obtained ISO 9001 and 1SO/TS16949 Quality Management System
Certification. We have also obtained IECQ QC 080000 HSPM Green
Manufacturing System Certification to effectively ensure that the certified
manufacturing process and products are free from hazardous substances.
Meanwhile, we also implements systems such as Quality Control Circle (QCC)
and 5S to ensure management quality.
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Operations Governance (Continued)

Product quality, safety and control (Continued)

All substandard products or customer complaints are always followed
up and settled immediately by relevant departments in accordance with
internal procedures and guidelines, with corresponding investigation and
improvement to prevent similar problems. For the year ended 31 March
2016, the headsets and headphones plants received a total of 25 complaints,
which were all followed up by relevant departments, and no product was
returned due to safety reasons during the year.

Anti-corruption

Integrity is our core philosophy, under which all bribery and corruption are
strictly forbidden. Relevant directions are not only set out in corporate policy
guidelines and codes of business ethics, but also included in “Employee
Confidentiality Agreement”, which lists out clearly our anti-corruption policies.
All new employees are required to sign up the agreement based on their
functions. We also established a sound mechanism for declaration of interests,
and set up diversified reporting channels such as personal tip-off, mail box,
telephone and e-mail for relevant complaints. All reported cases will be
dealt with in prudent, fair and proper manner. In respect of education, other
than such means as orientation, internal newsletters, notice board, we also
arranged employees in Hong Kong to attend seminars hosted by the ICAC
to promote anti-corruption messages. For our employees in Mainland, anti-
corruption seminars presided by commissioners of the Prosecution Office of
Dongguan City are arranged to strengthen anti-corruption awareness.

Contribution to society

Community investment

Contribution to society is one of our beliefs persisted over years. Bearing
in mind the philosophy of “giving back to where one takes from”, we have
formulated relevant policies to fulfill social responsibility, under which at least
four welfare activities will be regularly engaged in each year to support the
underprivileged with love and benefit the community. For the year ended 31
March 2016, total charitable donations of the Group amounted to HK$102,000.

We spare no effort for charity by setting up an example to actively foster
a corporate culture full of public spirit. Under our encouragement, every
volunteer activity received enthusiastic response from employees, who
actively participated in them. The Fujikon Blood Donation Day jointly held
with Hong Kong Red Cross on 8 June last year achieved a record-breaking
number of 46 successful participants. Last year, we also took part in many
charity fundraising walk and competitions, including UNICEF Charity Run,
Centum Charitas Foundation beHERO Run, Lifeline Express CCB (Asia) Charity
Run Walk and Yan Chai Charity Walk, so as to try our best in helping those
in need in the society.
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Contribution to society (Continued)

Community investment (Continued)
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Besides according priority to employ local people in areas where we operate
our business to help boost local employment, the Group also regularly
scheduled visits in our companies and factories for students from middle
schools, colleges and universities, so that they may gain basic knowledge
of industrial operations. The Group even participated in summer internship
programs organised by government institutions so that students can gain
working experience during the summer holidays. In order to equip students
with practical experience for better preparation of career, our management
personnel presided pre-service sharing sessions in relevant government
agencies or universities. Meanwhile, due to our vigorous contribution to
education, we are named the double golden sponsor for “Outstanding
Internships Scholarships” and golden sponsor for “VTC Design Education
Fund” in this financial year. In addition, four physically challenged staff
members have been employed by the Group to assist them to become self-
reliant and integrate into society.
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Contribution to society (Continued) EtEHE(E)
Community investment (Continued) HERE(E)
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Thanks to the tireless efforts of all staff of the Group, we have been awarded
with the “Caring Company” logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
for five consecutive years from 2003 to 2008 and another seven consecutive
years from 2009 to 2016. In this financial year, the Group also won the
"Industry Cares” Award in the Corporate Social Responsibility Recognition
Scheme run by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in recognition of our
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Independent Auditor’s Report
J5 3L #% BB 3R &

e
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FUJIKON INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujikon Industrial
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 58 to
122, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2016, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March
2016, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBIRIAR

As at 31 March 2016
H=2016F3H31H

Note 2016 2015
FifEE HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BENMRE 6 155,771 179,369
Investment properties wEYE 7 3,530 3,710
Land use rights b E A 8 4,478 4,895
Non-current deposits and other assets EmBiEe REMEE 1,930 7,303
Available-for-sale financial assets A] Hj%@ﬁ*ﬁ? 9 6,926 7,160
Deferred income tax assets ‘ﬁkﬁﬁﬁméﬁ 17 3,904 2,639
Total non-current assets IEMEBEELE 176,539 205,076
Current assets mENEE
Inventories FE 1 169,959 156,028
Trade receivables FEWE R 12 217,969 234,297
Other receivables H b fE U R I8 12 12,629 47,369
Other financial assets at fair value through BAFEFTAERHN
profit or loss Hh A E = 14 2,523 3,700
Current income tax recoverable m] Y B S BART 15 54 251 7,690
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRESSED 15 415,877 409,325
Total current assets MBEEHE 819,208 858,409
Current liabilities mENa &
Trade payables EREH 16 140,904 159,970
Accruals and other payables FEETE A & E Ath FE AT 5RIE 16 74,189 93,103
Derivative financial instruments PTAemtT A 13 8,372 4,034
Current income tax liabilities SHEHAE 17,625 16,701
Total current liabilities mEAREEE 241,090 273,808
_Netcurrentassets mBEEAE 578,118 584,601
Total assets less current liabilities REERRB AL 754,657 789,677
Non-current liabilities #mé)ﬁ%iﬁ
| Delgesdreone el BEmEHAR v Lt Ll
Net assets BEFE 753,462 788,871
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable to BEBAATIIEEA A
the Company's equity holders 2 RA R fE
Share capital A% 2 18 42,019 41,986
Other reserves H b 20 182,890 206,604
Retained earnings RE & T
— Proposed dividends —EERE 26 21,010 20,993
— Others —Hi 467,312 485,350
Non-controlling interests FE4E Il 1 HE 2 40,231 33,938
Total equity EwEE 753,462 788,871

HNESEI1N2E 2 MM KR E R2016F6 5230 &
BEeHETKHAUTESERREE

The financial statements on pages 58 to 122 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 23 June 2016 and were signed on its behalf.

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON

Chairman Joint Deputy Chairman
FE HE I

The notes on pages 62 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
£62E1228 2 M I ELR A MR 2 BB -

58  Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2015/2016



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEHEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BZE20165F3 4310 ILFE
Note 2016 2015
B 5E HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue WA 21 1,160,220 1,264,135
Cost of sales HE A (959,963) (1,082,479)
Gross profit EAH 8 200,257 181,656
Other gains — net Hfth U o — JF &R 22 3,221 15,295
Distribution and selling expenses 788 R HE T (14,409) (22,753)
General and administrative expenses —MRETEEE (164,662) (158,852)
Operating profit £ i A 23 24,407 15,346
Finance income BE WA 24 5,983 9,473
Profit before income tax KR PTAS T A& A1 30,390 24,819
Income tax expenses FRiSHis2 25 (5,424) (4,345)
Umliterdewey FrmM o 2488 2055
Other comprehensive income: Hith 2 mE e
Items that have been reclassified or may be EEFHHES MRS
subsequently reclassified to income statement: MoEERRKRCIER
Currency translation differences MEH =5 (25,214) 3,939
Fair value losses on available-for-sale A ERBEE 2 AT
financial assets EEE (234) (590)
Release of investment reserve upon disposal HERHREEMEEER
of available-for-sale financial assets FRr iRk 2 1 & (# - 132
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal S B A B R FTARER 2
of subsidiaries IE 5 & - (9,607)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEERE - B0
o tetoftax BE (25,448) (6.126)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREHEM=ERE (482) 14,348
Profit attributable to: A B
Equity holders of the Company RARIRERE A 11,259 12,602
Non-controlling interests FEVE Il 1 fE 2 13,707 7,872
24,966 20,474
Total comprehensive income attributable to: THEHWNEERS
Equity holders of the Company RATRERFE A (12,655) 6,194
Non-controlling interests FEVE I 12,173 8,154
(482) 14,348
Dividends % B 26 29,414 37,787
Earnings per share for profit attributable FANGBARARRESEA
to the equity holders of the Company 2 5 ) 8 5 1R 2 R
during the year
— Basic —HAR 27 HK2.7 cents HK3.0 cents
- Diluted — e 27 HK2.7 cents HK3.0 cents

The notes on pages 62 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEEREIR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HZ2016F3A31BILFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company

REREATREREA
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling
Note capital  reserves  earnings interests Total
JE AR
Bzt REA  HitRE KREEA ER @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2014 RH2014F4818 41,986 244,820 516,824 46,139 849,769
Profit for the year ER T - - 12,602 7,872 20,474
Other comprehensive income: Hi2EKE
- Currency translation differences -EREE 20 - 3,657 - 282 3,939
— Fair value losses on available-for-sale —AEHENBEE
financial assets ZATEEBE 20 - (590) - = (590)
— Release of investment reserve upon disposal -HEMTHLENBEE
of available-for-sale financial assets BTG 2 RE R 20 = 132 = = 132
— Release of exchange reserve upon disposal — HEMB D AR FTiER
of subsidiaries B 20 - (9,607) - - (9,607)
Total comprehensive income for the year HZE01F3A31BLFE
ended 31 March 2015 PENGEE = (6,408) 12,602 8,154 14,348
Employee share option scheme: B EREARETE -
~ Value of employee services - EERKERE 20 = (310) = = (310)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - (31,49) 31,498 (15,455) (15,455
Dividends paid ERRE = - (54,581) (4,900)  (59,481)
At 31 March 2015 R2015%53A318 41,986 206,604 506,343 33,938 788,871
Profit for the year ER T = = 11,259 13,707 24,966
Other comprehensive income: Hih2EKE
— Currency translation differences -ERERE 20 - (23,680) - (1,534)  (25,214)
- Fair value losses on available-for-sale ~AHHERBEELZ
financial assets ATEESR 20 = (234) = = (234)
Total comprehensive income for the year HZE01653A31BLFE
ended 31 March 2016 TEYNEERE - (23914 11259 12,173 (482)
Employee share option scheme: EEREARETE -
— Lapse of share options —BREXHN 20 = (134) 134 - -
— Proceed from shares issued upon exercise —TREBREmETRG
of share options AR 20 33 334 - - 367
Dividends paid BERERE = - (29.414) (5,880)  (35,294)
At 31 March 2016 ®20165F3H31H 42,019 182,890 488,322 40,231 753,462

The notes on pages 62 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

g'l? 0 EE%UILE%‘

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HZE2016F3A318 LFE
Note 2016 2015
s HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRERNE
Cash generated from operations LEEBAS RS 30(a) 51,963 5,002
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERNBEEREH (3,617) (8,242)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BEREBBNEH 7,634 190
China corporate income tax paid EHEF‘ B HEFTSR (1,293) (3,914)
China corporate income tax refunded REPBTEREN - 186
Net cash generated from/(used in) KEEREME(FTR) 2
operating activities e Fr 54,687 (6,778)
Cash flows from investing activities REZHHRERE
Interest received 2R & 6,149 9,830
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAME - BE&EE (16,863) (28,065)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BAMHLEMBEE = (7,750)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEHREENHEE
financial assets FriS 58 - 2,388
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERRE
plant and equipment Fri5 skI8 23 595
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets HER AT EFAEBRD
at fair value through profit or loss EAth B %5 & EPR1S SE - 5,854
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of LEMB AR - BB
HENRS - 25,617
Increase in non-current deposits FEmBNIR 2 35 hN (35) (2,058)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KREES(FTA) /s
investing activities e FR (10,726) 6,411
Cash flows from financing activities METHRESRE
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options AITE R EMm TR 30(b) 367 =
Dividends paid to a non-controlling BATH B A A IR AR R
shareholder of a subsidiary 2B (5,880) (4,900)
Dividends paid to Company's shareholders B AR B R Z A (29,414) (54,581)
_Net cash used in financing activities ] mATBMAZREFE | (34927) (59,481)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReRBLESEYEM
equivalents CR2) 38 9,034 (59,848)
Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEBYIENEZ8E (2,482) 321
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FURERASEEY 409,325 468,852
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREESREALSZEEY 415,877 409,325

The notes on pages 62 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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General information

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the design,
manufacture, marketing and trading of electro-acoustic products,
accessories and other electronic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties, available-for-
sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Effect of adopting amendments to standards

The following amendments to standards are mandatory for the
Group's financial year beginning on 1 April 2015:

—mEn
EITREEERERARTARA D REWE
AR (HEIAEE D FEREZRG - Wi
ERHEEERER EUGREMETFER -

AR ABRBREFMKLZBR AR - &
5 i 9% = B2 2 b4k A Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda °

ARRREBEBMERZAARDA ([HBZZFT])
e

BRERBIN RGP BHRREAZEEE
fATET(TTETL -

TREHRAE
BUARANHRRMER 2 BT BEHR
BRTX - RBEHAI  HERRER2%
BT 4F A B AR -

2.1 RBEEXE

A EMBERRIDRBERAERZEEY
BREE(TEBMBREER ) ARESE
RAZRSE - WHIREWME - ML EY
BEE BIAFEHFABGNUBEER
BHaREETETR) 2EfMELE
B

RENATEMBHREENNMBERERT
REMETHRSEE - ENFEEE
EERBAREN S BRBRERITER
HE - FRBERNHE D EERE N
B S RHEGREMBRRIEFLEARR
MBS - T4 RE -

(a) BMER BT 2%
TR ER| 2B TR AR S BE2015F4A4
1 B #8 2 B R AR T 58 Il BR AN

HKFRS (Amendments) Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle and 2011-2013 cycle
BBV HREER (BETA) BEM B RS LER2010F £201265 B H X201 F 220136 B H < F [ B
HKAS 19 (Amendment) Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

ER G ERE199% (BFTA) RERBAMEE : EEHK

The adoption of these amendments to standards did not result
in a significant impact on the results and financial position of
the Group.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015/2016
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to standards
that have been issued but are not effective

The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued, but are not effective for the Group's
financial year beginning on 1 April 2015 and have not been
early adopted.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

BBV BREER(SFTA)

HKFRS 9

BB R EERIFE

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BAPBHREENFI0EREL ST

HRFE2858 (IBRT )

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BV BREEFI105 - BEMBREERIFE 1258 R

EREGHERE285R(EFTAR)

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

BBV BREERENFUSETA)
HKFRS 14

BB EERE 145

HKFRS 15

BB B EERE 1559

HKFRS 16

BB RS AER165%

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

BB EREIFRBETA)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendment)

BB EAE16E BB ER 385 (EFTA)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendment)

BER G ERE16E R BB ERFENH(BETA)
HKAS 27 (Amendment)

ER G ERE27HR(BETA)

1

2 FERETHRBME#R)
2.1 wRAUEE(E)

(b) EEAEHRERZHTENRE

Bl 24857

THEET R R ER| 2B FT A A&
E2015F4R1BABE T REEE

MR B 18R A R B I IR R AR

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle'

BN BIREERD012FZ2014F B 2 FEW

Financial instruments?

SET A2

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture*

KREEREBERASEEARIZENEERE
DEYN

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation

exception’
REER  BAKANMISMER

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations’

WA L ¥R Gt EE

Regulatory deferral accounts’

EERIERP

Revenue from contracts with customers?

BEF &8 ?

Leases?

aE

Disclosure initiative'

BB

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation’

BETEREHE AT ET AR

Agriculture: Bearer plants’

B EEMEEY

Equity method in separate financial statements’

B PR 2 A

Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2016

201651 A1 2 &M 2 MBFERE LR

Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018

H2018F1 A1 A 2 &M 2 B E A

Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2019

H20195F1 A1 B2 R 2 B FEEK

No mandatory effective date yet determined

1) AR B XE SR i) A 3K B AR

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new standards and amendments to standards
upon initial application but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new standards and amendments to standards
would have any significant impact on its results of operations
and financial positions.

o

3&_1

AEEEFAEGERZENIE

Al RER 2 ST R 2

- HER BB

i# AR F] AF A ik B AT AT R R R 2
e HERERERMBINN

BREMEAZE

2015/2016 3 ELTSEXEZERERA A

63



Notes to the Financial Statements

HA %55 2R 3% Pft 5

2

64

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622)

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation during the financial year, as a result, there are
changes to presentation and disclosures of certain information
in the consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
group’s accounting policies.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Annual Report 2015/2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Consolidation (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive directors who collectively make
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

(b)
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

(c)

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in amortised costs are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income presented are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average rate is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference
is reclassified to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other property,
plant and equipment, other than construction-in-progress, are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified Shorter of remaining lease term

as finance lease of 30-50 years or useful life

2.5% to 8'3%
10% to 50%
20% to 30%

30%

Buildings

Machinery and moulds
Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within “other
gains — net”, in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents consideration
paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants and
buildings are situated for a period of 50 years. Amortisation of land
use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents office buildings under
construction and machinery and equipment pending installation. It
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes the
original cost of land, construction expenditures incurred, machinery
and equipment and related installation costs, and other costs
attributable to the construction of the buildings and installation of
machinery and equipment. No depreciation is provided in respect
of construction-in-progress until the construction work is completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are brought
into use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in
the consolidated group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it was a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date
of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested at
least annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.10Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, which are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables are classified as trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the statements of
financial position (Notes 2.13 and 2.14).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10Financial assets (Continued)

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on the date of trade — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category, are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “other
gains — net” in the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within “other gains — net”. Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the Group's
right to receive payment is established.

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an
indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in Note 2.13.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. As at 31
March 2016, the Group did not designate any derivatives as hedging
instruments. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “other
gains — net"”.

2.12Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs, raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.13Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

2.15Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liabilities where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in
the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The schemes are generally
funded through payments to insurance companies or trustee-
administered funds. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

e  excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

¢ including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation (Continued)

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

(c) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.20Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.21Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when the related risks and
rewards of ownership of the products delivered have passed to
the customers.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

(c) Management fees and handling income

Management fees and handling income are recognised when
the relevant services are rendered.

(d) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the relevant leases.

2.22Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

2.23Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a type of insurance contract) is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. The Group performs a liability
adequacy test at each statement of financial position date by
comparing its net liability regarding the financial guarantee with
the amount that would be required if the financial guarantee were
to result in a present legal or constructive obligation. If the liability
is less than its present legal or constructive obligation amount, the
entire difference is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. During the year, no provision has been made
in the financial statements for the financial guarantees.

2.24Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group's and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders or directors, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are deferred and credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and cash
flow and fair value interest-rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management policy focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
Mainland China with transactions mainly settled in
Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB") and
US dollars ("USD"). The Group is mainly exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate.

The Group entered into foreign currency forward
contracts to manage such exposure. The net fair value of
foreign exchange forward contracts entered into by the
Group for managing the risk relating to monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies at 31 March 2016 was
a liability of HK$8,372,000 (2015: HK$4,034,000) and
has been recognised as derivative financial instruments.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2016, if HKD/USD had weakened/
strengthened by 2% (2015: 2%) against RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$3,428,000 (2015:
HK$1,231,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on net impact on translation of
RMB-denominated net monetary assets of subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and HKD/USD-denominated net monetary
assets of subsidiaries in Mainland China.

Price risk

The Group's investment bonds, listed securities and
investment funds are susceptible to market price risk
arising from uncertainties about future prices of those
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. Management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles. Management considered that
the exposure of investment bonds, listed securities and
investment funds to price risk is not significant.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities except for certain bank deposits, the Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group generally does not use financial derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
resulted from the changes in interest rates on interest-
bearing assets and bank borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, cash
and bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

At 31 March 2016, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities of its subsidiaries. Credit risk
relating to those guarantees amounted to approximately
HK$155,700,000 (2015: HK$155,700,000), which represented
the notional amounts of such guarantees.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has put in
place policies to ensure that sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers and takes
appropriate follow-up actions to recover overdue debts.

The Group's historical experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the recorded allowances and
the directors are of the opinion that adequate provision
for uncollectible trade receivables has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, substantially all cash and bank
deposits are placed with major financial institutions located
in Hong Kong and Mainland China; all financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets are also placed with those financial institutions which
management believes are of high credit quality. Management
does not expect any losses arising from non-performance by
these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity
structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and
commitments of the Group. The Group also maintains a
healthy level of liquid assets and committed banking facilities
to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet
any unexpected and material cash requirements in the
ordinary course of business. At 31 March 2016, the Group has
unutilised committed banking facilities of HK$160,600,000
(2015: HK$160,600,000).
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

3.2

3.3

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities,
the remaining periods of which at the end of the reporting
period to the contractual maturity date are within 12 months.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

3

R EREZ)
3.1 BiEBRREAEE)

() REMERER(E)
TRAOMAKEZMBEE - AR
SHBAEREESHNIHBZHET
HEAIEARN - RPAFKESE
RAENAUBERERE -

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
Trade and other payables JE A~ & R R EAth i A5 FR0E 174,156 198,451

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total equity, including
share capital, other reserves and retained earnings.

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group was at the net cash
position.

Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 13, financial instruments measured in the
statement of financial position at fair value are required to disclose
the fair value measurements by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MBREBERE#)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DT EMGE(E)
The following table presents the Group's financial assets and TREVNAREBENR2016F3A31BEAF
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2016. B EcWBEEREE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F11% B8R £34K F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss MIEEE
— Listed securities and —LtmEHER
investment funds BEES 2,523 - - 2,523
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHHENKEE
— Corporate bonds —EEH 6,926 = = 6,926
Total st 9,449 - = 9,449
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial instruments PTESmTA - 8,372 - 8,372
The following table presents the Group's financial assets and TRENAEER2015F3A3MBEAF
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2015. B2z EEREE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B E2H FE3R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABREZ
through profit or loss MBEE
— Listed securities and —ETmREHE
investment funds "EHES 3,700 - - 3,700
Available-for-sale financial assets A ERBEE
— Corporate bonds —EEH 7,160 - - 7,160
Total et 10,860 - - 10,860
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIA - 4,034 - 4,034

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
(such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-
sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the statement of
financial position date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety
of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period. Quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash
flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange market rates at the end of the
reporting period.

There was no transfer of financial assets between Level 1 and Level
2 during the year.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management expects it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available to utilise against the
temporary differences or tax losses. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets in the period in which
such estimates have been changed.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015/2016
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives, and
related depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment.
The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.

Estimated provision for impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of receivables. Provisions are
made where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of receivables and impairment is recognised in
the year in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimated provision for inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based on an assessment
of the realisability of inventories. Provisions are recognised where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of inventories may not be realised. The identification of provision
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and provision for inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(e) Estimated provision for warranty

()

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

The Group records warranty liabilities based on past experience
of the level of repairs or returns. The assessment of the provision
amount involves management’s judgements and estimates. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying amount
of the product warranty and the provision amount charged/reversed
in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment and
land use rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.
These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in asset impairment review
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset is less than the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) whether
appropriate key assumptions are applied in preparing cash flow
projections including using an appropriate discount rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in the impairment
assessment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group's financial position and results of operations. If there
is a significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to charge
an impairment loss to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(g) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group relies on bank valuations to determine the fair value of
financial instruments which in turn are determined using various
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models
and option pricing model, which require the input of subjective
assumptions including forward foreign exchange rates, risk free
rates and market volatility. Judgement is required in the calculation
of such valuations. Changes in the underlying assumptions could
impact profit and loss or equity.

(h) Employee benefits — share-based payments

The valuation of the fair value of the share options granted requires
judgement in determining the expected volatility of the share price,
the dividends expected on the shares, the risk-free interest rate
during the life of the options and the number of share options
that are expected to vest. Where the outcome of the number of
options that are vested is different, such difference will impact the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the subsequent
remaining vesting period of the relevant share options.

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the executive directors. CODM reviews the Group's internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

CODM assesses the performance of the business from a product
perspective, i.e. by headsets and headphones, and accessories and
components.

CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
segment results before corporate expenses, other gains and losses,
finance income and costs.

Revenue between segments is carried out in accordance with the terms
mutually agreed by the respective parties. The revenue from external
parties is derived from numerous external customers and is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FA %55 4R 3R Fft 5
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Segment information (Continued)

Headsets and

5

Accessories and

headphones components Elimination Total
ERERREEEH RH4REH 6] g
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000 HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000 HK$'000
Segment revenue onih N
- External revenue —$IMIA 881,777 913,798 272,443 350,337 = - 1,160,220 1,264,135
- Inter-segment revenue -HBERA - - 44916 91,673 (44,916)  (91,673) - -
Total E 887,777 913798 317,350 442010  (44,916)  (91,673) 1,160,220 1264135
Segment results DEEE (395)  (16,637) 25,867 21,071 - = 25,472 4,434
Corporate expenses rEIH (4.286)  (4,383)
Other gains - net Hinlm— 58 3,221 15,295
Finance income N 5,983 9,473
Profit before income tax bR AT E AT A R 30,390 24,819
Other segment information: HiHHER -
Depreciation of property, nE - BER
plant and equipment REE 21,014 30,827 9,649 9,558 - - 37,063 40,385
Amortisation of land use rights TG RE B 167 17 - Ix] - = 167 215
Provision/(reversal of provision) ARERERE/
for impairment of inventory (E%)
obsolescence 4,867 (5,583) 1,476 1,011 - - 6,343 (4,572)
Provision/(reversal of provision) R EZRE
for impairment of trade B/ (0#)
receivables 829 an (521) 685 - - 308 1,106
Additions to non-current assets ERBBELN
(other than financial (remIA
instruments and RERFER
deferred income tax assets) BEH) 9,060 20,425 7,556 8,731 - - 16,616 29,156

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2015/2016
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Segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016, revenues of approximately
HK$590,527,000 (2015: HK$413,987,000) were derived from three
(2015: two) customers, amounted to approximately HK$224,325,000,
HK$216,014,000 and HK$150,188,000 respectively, which individually
accounted for over 10% of the Group's total revenue. These revenues
of approximately HK$400,187,000 (2015: HK$280,976,000) and
HK$190,340,000 (2015: HK$133,011,000) are attributable to headsets
and headphones segment and accessories and components segment
respectively.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. Revenue from external
customers attributed to Hong Kong for the year ended 31 March 2016 is
approximately HK$933,683,000 (2015: HK$1,110,350,000), and the total
revenue from external customers from Mainland China is approximately
HK$226,537,000 (2015: HK$153,785,000).

At 31 March 2016, the total non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets located in Hong Kong and
Mainland China is approximately HK$32,620,000 (2015: HK$36,168,000)
and HK$133,089,000 (2015: HK$159,109,000) respectively.

FA %55 4R 3R Fft 5

DEER(E)

#H =2016F3831H Ik F E + 49590,527,0007%5
70(2015 : 413,987,000 ) 2 WA TR B =4
(2015: WM& )EF + 9 B 4 5224,325,0007%
JC 216,014,000 7T 5%150,188,0007% 7T © & B
1l AN EE B 42 UK A10% A E o E A #7400,187,000
7 7t.(2015 : 280,976,0007% 7T ) }2190,340,0007%
70(2015 : 133,011,000/ 7T ) 75 51| /2 2y Bk B4 &
ZEHRSHHEARGRTH I 2BA -

w2
v2)

ARAFINBEAEBENM - Bl E2016F3H318 1E
FERABB ZHINE P UK £933,683,000
# 7£(2015 : 1,110,350,00058 7T ) » M 2k & &
Wiz $HNE P IR A #8584 5226,537,0007%8 7T
(2015 : 153,785,000/& 7T ) °

201653 H31H » Bram TR RELEFTFH
BEN UREBERPRAMZIERDEER
& % 3l 49 £32,620,0005% 7T (2015 : 36,168,000
& 7T ) $%.133,089,0007% 7T (2015 : 159,109,000
JT) °

2015/2016 3 BroBXEZERERAT 89



Notes to the Financial Statements

HA %5 3R 3% Bt 5E

6 Property, plant and equipment 6 YH¥- HWERRE

Leasehold Construction Furniture

land and -in-  Machinery and Motor

buildings progress and moulds equipment vehicles Total

HELH i B

kgF EEIR )52 ¥:! REW AE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2014 R2014F4A1A
Cost XA 231,284 9,307 242,957 135,024 24,419 642,991
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (85,351) - (191,285 (109,999) (17,227)  (403,862)
Net book amount REFE 145,933 9,307 51,672 25,025 7,192 239,129
Year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2015%3H31AH
LEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 145,933 9,307 51,672 25,025 7,192 239,129
Additions N 1,007 93 14,284 9,936 1,778 27,098
Disposals & - - (29) (107) (224) (360)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB QR (37,167) (9,354) (123) (657) (208) (47,509)
Transfer R 93 (93) = = = =
Depreciation charge MERZ (8,228) - (19,467) (9,908) (2,782) (40,385)
Exchange differences X 828 47 379 131 11 1,396
Closing net book amount FHRERFE 102,466 - 46,716 24,420 5,767 179,369
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3A31H
Cost D% 184,999 - 212,696 133,963 19,771 551,429
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (82,533) - (165980)  (109,543) (14,004)  (372,060)
Net book amount REFE 102,466 - 46,716 24,420 5,767 179,369
Year ended 31 March 2016 #Z2016F3H31H
JI:3:5

Opening net book amount FNREFE 102,466 = 46,716 24,420 5,767 179,369
Additions #5 659 - 15,883 4,931 288 21,761
Disposals & (7) = (285) (512) 3) (807)
Depreciation charge nEHRX (6,546) - (18,115) (9,795) (2,607) (37,063)
Exchange differences e ER (4,189) = (2,455) (783) (62) (7,489)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 92,383 = 41,744 18,261 3,383 155,771
At 31 March 2016 R2016%F3A31H
Cost 5% 176,072 - 216,588 131,716 19,069 543,445
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (83,689) - (174,844)  (113,455)  (15,686)  (387,674)
Net book amount REFE 92,383 - 41,744 18,261 3,383 155,771
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$26,267,000 (2015: HK$27,922,000) has been
included in cost of sales and HK$10,796,000 (2015: HK$12,463,000) in
general and administrative expenses.

At 31 March 2016 and 2015, no property, plant and equipment was
pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities.

At 31 March 2016, the Group's interests in leasehold land at net book
value of HK$8,968,000 (2015: HK$9,255,000) is located in Hong Kong and
held on leases between 10 to 50 years.

FA %55 4R 3R Fft 5

W BERRE )

I £ B 326,267,000 7T (2015 : 27,922,00078
TT) B AR 8 SRR 110,796,000 7T (2015
12,463,000 70) E AR — A RATHRZ H »

720164 K 2015F3 8318 * EWE - BEX
BRBETEM  (EAREERSGRITRE 2K
R o

720163 4318 » A& E K BREF(E8,968,000
7 70(2015 © 9,255,000/ 70 ) 2 FE b 2 #E =S
UREBLLA0ES0FEHLIFSE -

Investment properties REY=
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of the year F9) 3,710 3,120
Fair value (losses)/gains (Note 22) AFAE(EE), Wk (HisE22) (180) 590
End of the year Fi8 3,530 3,710

For the year ended 31 March 2016, outgoings in respect of investment
properties amounted to HK$26,000 (2015: HK$15,000).

The investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2016 by LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer.
Valuations were based on current prices in an active market.

At 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group's interests in investment
properties are wholly located in Hong Kong and held on leases between
10 to 50 years.

Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for its investment properties at
least annually. In the current year, the valuations are performed by LCH
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuers. At the end of each reporting period, the directors update their
assessment of the fair value of each property, taking into account the
most recent independent valuations. The directors determine a property’s
value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.

HZE2016F3A3HILLFE  REWEZ I
/26,0007 7T.(2015 : 15,0005 7T) o

MR2016F3A310  WEVERBULEELRE
BAEEMASEITAEMARARETEM - &
ENRERNERMIS ZBITERETT -

720164 K 2015F3A31H - KEBERNIKE D
X2 EDEHEMREB R 0ES0F R L
*ﬁ— °

hERE%

AEBELREFRERENEZBIUIEE -
RAFEE  ABILEXREERMAERFETA
EMARABENTHE REFSHHER
B EFEeREEROBUNAGRERENE
ZRVEZHE - EERAERAFEBEHE
NEEMHEEE -
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7 Investment properties (Continued)

Valuation basis (Continued)

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar investment properties. Where such information is not available the

directors consider information from a variety of sources including:

(i)  Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature
or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted

to reflect those differences;

(ii) Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of

future cash flows; or

(iii) Capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated
net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an

analysis of market evidence.

The valuation loss/gain is included in "Other gains — net” in the

consolidated income statement (Note 22).

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair

value by valuation method:

Fair value hierarchy

BREWE @)
EEEE )
AEEz ZEBRARERTBRLRENE

ZHE BEERERGREEANK 828
SRAKRER - B4

() EREMSTEUEYEZRBRBINE
RETNEEMS2INE  HEARKRZE
=

(i) REASEGFHARARBRSRAZEEFRRES
m ok

(i) REVEZBATSRAFEENMCEE
WA+ BEARFRTIZTIZERA DN

/I

HMEBEREN G KRR Ebkas — %
#5IR (M eE22) »

Bl

TREFIAGEERRAFEARZKRED (2
DT

DFEER

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2016 using

R2016F3A31AFTAZAFEE
Quoted prices in
active markets for

Significant

Significant other unobservable

identical assets observable inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEERTER HttEZ A8 E BEEFRAEHE
g2 ME(E1R) B OE (F24R) BB (E34R)
HK$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value LEUANFEFE
measurements
— Investment properties —REME 3,530 -

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Level 2 fair values of investment properties have been derived using the
direct comparison approach, which is based on comparing the property
to be valued directly with other comparable properties in close proximity,

which have recently transacted.
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8 Land use rights

Notes to the Financial Statements

At %5 ¥R 2% B 5

8 tTifFERARE

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease
payments and their net book value are analysed as follows:

REBR T fE A2 B RIANEEHON
BREBREFE S 2O

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

Beginning of the year F1)) 4,895 9,864
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payment #5578 (& & K 7K 1A (167) (215)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEN B R T - (4,817)
Exchange differences ME X =5 (250) 63
End of the year Fi8 4,478 4,895

At 31 March 2016 and 2015, no land use rights was pledged as security

for the Group's banking facilities.

R20164F K%201543 8318  fiE L RED
FEF - EAAEERESRTRE ZERS -

9 Available-for-sale financial assets 9 WHHEMBEE

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

Beginning of the year F4 7,160 2,333

Additions IR - 7,750

Disposals k= = (2,465)

Fair value losses transferred to other EREHMEENEZ

comprehensive income (Note 20) ANF{EEE (FEE20) (234) (590)
Release of reserve upon disposal FREERMER 2 EE

during the year (Note 20) (Pt3E20) - 132

End of the year FiR 6,926 7,160

At 31 March 2016, the Group's available-for-sale financial assets
represented investment bonds. The fair value of the investment bonds
was based on their current bid price in an active market provided by

counterparties.

The available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in USD. None of

these financial assets is either past due or impaired.

R2016F3A31H @ AEEZ A HEEHKE
EEREES %SREBE 2 AFENRE
RHWTIREERHRNEFRTISEEABME °

AHHEMBEEEALTE  ZSEWHEE
I F 3B H RORLE ©
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10

94

Subsidiaries

(a) Principal subsidiaries

10 fEAE
(a) TEMEAF

The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 TRAEAARNR2016F3IANBZEEN
March 2016: BRrm]:
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place Kind of Class of issued Interest
Name of operation legal entity Principal activities shares held  share capital held (ii)
By BRfT
£8 TERERY FRERNE  TEEY iR 6 &5 RAFE PR
Charter Media Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and trading Ordinary shares HKS3 100%
company of electro-acoustic products
and accessories
HEERDE Bk BEREERR RABRREESEERREH ERR 3BT 100%
Charter Media (Dongguan) ~ Mainland China Wholly owned Manufacture of electro-acoustic Ordinary shares  HK$190,000,000 100%
Company Limited (i) foreign products and accessories
enterprise
PR(RZ)ETER  PERN HNEZERE REBRERREM @R 190,000,000 100%
AR X
Dongguan Full Rich Mainland China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading Ordinary shares  HK$11,000,000 100%
Precision Metal Products foreign of precision metal parts
Company Limited (i) enterprise
REEGRELCES  PHEMM NERERE  BEREERTLERM LER 11,000,000 T 100%
BRATF) i+ 4
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) British Virgin Islands  Limited liability ~ Investment holding Ordinary shares US§3,000 100%
Limited (ji) company
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) ~ HERZHE BREALNE REERR Lk 3,000%7C 100%
Limited (ii)
Fujikon Industrial Company Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Design, manufacture, marketing Class A HK$2,400,000 -
Limited company and trading of electro-acoustic (non-voting)
products and accessories (iif)
EIREXERAT Bt BREERR Rt 2 HEREEEREM AE 2,400,000 T =
Rt (BIRZHE) (i)
Class B HK$600,000 100%
(voting) (iii)
B 600,000 100%

Fujikon International Hong Kong
Limited
ELRERARAF Bt

Fujikon Packing Material  Hong Kong
Company Limited
ETRERMHERAR FE

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

(B RZE) i)

Limited liability ~ Investment holding and trading of ~ Ordinary shares HK$3 100%
company transformers and power adaptors
BRAMLE RERRREEZESR LaEK 3T 100%
EWIEE
Limited liability ~ Investment holding and manufacture  Ordinary shares HK$10,000 51%
company and trading of packaging materials
BREALR REBRARREREEBENH LER 1000087 51%
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10 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a) Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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10 M A=)
(a) EEMBAR ()

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place Kind of Class of issued Interest
Name of operation legal entity Principal activities shares held  share capital held (i)
itV B&f
L TEEEHY HFRERNE IEER SRR 5 RAFE  FEEE)
Fujikon Precision Metal Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and manufacture ~ Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100%
Products Limited company and trading of precision metal parts
EreRTLeHM BE BREARE REBBRURMEREERZLS EER 10,0007 T 100%
BRAR Befr
Full-Sound (Dongguan) Mainland China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading of Ordinary shares  HK$9,800,000 100%
Electrical Products foreign electro-acoustic products
Limited (i) enterprise and accessories
ER(RR)EREAEAR PERMKE NEZERE RERREEBEMREN L@k 980000087 100%
DA i1
Keen Motion Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Provision of management services  Ordinary shares HKS2 100%
company
BRERAA BE BREARR RUEERS ERR 2R 100%
Landbo Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Property holding Ordinary shares HK$100 100%
company
IRBRAT] 30 AREARR  NEEE ERR 10087 100%
Maxchief Enterprises Hong Kong Limited liability  Investment holding and trading Ordinary shares HK$150 100%
Limited company of electro-acoustic products
and accessories
EELEARAA Bt BREMARR REZRLESSBERNEHN LBk 15087 100%
Profits (Dongguan) Electric ~ Mainland China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading of Ordinary shares  HK$5,410,000 100%
Products Company foreign transformers and power adaptors
Limited (i) enterprise
BE(RR)ESERER TEAK NEEERE HEREERERRENERS LER 54100007 100%
Gl i3
Score Merit Limited Hong Kong Limited liability  Investment holding Ordinary shares HK$2 100%
company
FXERAR e BREARR REER LRR BT 100%
Smart Success Management  British Virgin Islands ~ Limited liability ~ Investment holding Ordinary shares Us$100 100%
Limited company
Smart Success Management XERZEE BREERR REER Lak 100%7T 100%

Limited
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10 Subsidiaries (continued)

96

(a) Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

10 fEAE
(a) TEMBEAR (&)

Particulars of

principal place Kind of Class of issued Interest
Name of operation legal entity Principal activities shares held share capital held (ii)
itV B&f
L TELEHY ERERME IERE FrisR & 85 RAFE  FRSEE)
Dong Guan Fortune Packing Mainland China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading Ordinary shares HK$34,000,000 51%
Products Company foreign of packaging materials
Limited (i) enterprise
ZEREEAMER  PERME NEZERE REREERRMH bR 34,000,000 7T 51%
2 Al() i3
Guiyang Fullsound Mainland China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading of Ordinary shares HK$5,000,000 100%
Electronic Products foreign electro-acoustic products
Limited (i) enterprise and accessories
EREEERRMER  TER NE2ERE REREESBEMREHN L@kR  5000,000%7T 100%
2 i1
Qin Zhou Fortune Packing ~ Mainland China Wholly owned ~ Manufacture and trading of Ordinary shares RMB500,000 51%
Products Company foreign packaging materials
Limited (i) enterprise
ﬂm*@ﬁ <BmAR  PEAL NERERE RERBEEEEMH TRk AKE500,0007T 51%
) %
Notes: ks
(i) Charter Media (Dongguan) Company Limited, Dongguan Full Rich (i)  HEFRE) EFERAR RxEEREY

(i)

(iii)

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Precision Metal Products Company Limited, Full-Sound (Dongguan)
Electrical Products Limited, Profits (Dongguan) Electric Products
Company Limited, Dong Guan Fortune Packing Products Company
Limited, Guiyang Fullsound Electronic Products Limited and Qin Zhou
Fortune Packing Products Company Limited are wholly foreign owned
enterprises established in Mainland China to be operated for 25 years
up to May 2019, 17 years up to October 2021, 22 years up to April
2024, 17 years up to January 2017, 25 years up to November 2024, 12
years up to June 2025 and 20 years up to July 2034, respectively.

The shares of Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited are held directly by the
Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Holders of Class A (non-voting) shares have no voting rights, are not
entitled to dividends unless the net profit of the company exceeds
HK$900,000,000,000, and are not entitled to any distribution upon
winding up unless a sum of HK$900,000,000,000 has been distributed
by the Company to holders of Class B (voting) shares.
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10 Subsidiaries (continued)
(b) Material non-controlling interests

As at 31 March 2016, the total non-controlling interests is
HK$40,231,000 (2015: HK$33,938,000), solely representing their
interests in Fujikon Packing Material Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
("FPC Group”).

Set out below are the summarised financial information for FPC
Group that has non-controlling interests that are material to the

At %5 ¥R 2% B 5

10 B AT (&)
(b) EARFEZFH M-S
20163 A31H @ FEEHIEEZRE R
40,231,0007% 7t.(2015 : 33,938,000 7T ) -
ERERELISEEMAARA A RENM
BRel([ELtmeEYrEm]) 2 #s -

TRV ELSEEMHEEEEBAE
BEANZFEHEREMHEERRE -

Group.
Summarised statement of financial position HMBERARBE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets FEREBEE 26,903 24,530
Current assets MENEE 97,424 92,392
Current liabilities mENBE (42,223) (47,646)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE = (15)
Net assets BEFE 82,104 69,261
Summarised income statement W REE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue WA 230,337 239,013
Profits before income tax B Fr 45 758 Al s A1 35,102 20,993
Income tax expenses Fre i (7,129) (5,383)
Profits for the year F RN F 27,973 15,610
Other comprehensive income HAh 2 E K= (3,131) 416
Total comprehensive income THEW=EE 24,842 16,026
Total comprehensive income allocated 2> Fid 2= FE42 | {4 E 25 Y
to non-controlling interests FHEREBEE 12,173 7,902
Dividends paid to non-controlling IR T IR HI MR R A IR B
interests 5,880 4,900
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10 Subsidiaries (continued) 10 MIB AT (&)
(b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (b) ERFEFIMERE)
Summarised cash flows RenEmeE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net cash generated from operating activities 4X& /EE TS 2R & F5E 32,800 33,993
Net cash used in investing activities KREZEMAZESFE (6,910) (5,736)
Net cash used in financing activities BEERSMA RS T (12,000) (10,000)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEYILIMFR 13,890 18,257
Exchange differences on cash RekBReEEMENZH
and cash equivalents (160) 32
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRERFSEEY
beginning of year 36,848 18,559
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRBSEEY 50,578 36,848
11 Inventories 11 78
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials R 71,111 71,128
Work-in-progress £ 8 41,493 48,772
Finished goods RAK M 57,355 36,128
169,959 156,028
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in BRAEYXHERFTAHEXN A ZTFEXRAL B
cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$953,620,000 (2015: 953,620,0007% 7T (2015 : 1,087,051,0005% 7T ) °
HK$1,087,051,000). For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group HE16F3ANBLEFE AEBEELZR
has made a net provision for inventory obsolescence of approximately EFEBEH 56,343,000 0(2015 - BEBRE
HK$6,343,000 (2015: reversed a net amount of provision for inventory THEEX) 54,572,000 7T) ©

obsolescence of approximately HK$4,572,000).
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12 Trade and other receivables

The Group grants credit periods to customers ranging from 7 to 120
days. At 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$155,820,000 (2015:
HK$173,999,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These related to a
number of independent customers for whom there was no relevant history
of default. Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are
not considered impaired except for customers which are in unexpected
difficult economic situations. Trade receivables of HK$2,844,000 (2015:
HK$3,713,000) were impaired in full. The amount of the individually
impaired trade receivables mainly relate to customers that were in
financial difficulties. A majority of these receivables have been past due
for over 3 months. At 31 March 2016 and 2015, other receivables are not
considered impaired and have no history of default.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables by past due date is as
follows:

FA %55 4R 3R Fft 5

12 BWE R R E e WK IE

NEBBRTFEEIZEI208 2ZEH - 120164
38318 - &4 E 155,820,000/ 7t (2015 :
173,999,000 7T ) I f% 80 HR KRk (B © 2 F K
BRETWERABENERLCENBEYRFLE
o RUBMERTENECERE BRI - @
HAORIEAR 2 BRE XL TR ERE - B
5 572,844,000/ 7T (2015 : 3,713,000/ 7T) B &
HETIRRE - AR HIRRE B ERKEE
EMP RN s BEE G - ZEREBGRIERE
SEBEERE = o 120169 &%2015F3H
318 - EfhERGRIBY TG AR E I EERE
D8R

REMAGEZ REERZRESTAT

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current EH 155,820 173,999
1 to 30 days 1THZ30H 31,204 30,056
31 to 60 days 31HZ60H 22,837 17,610
61 to 90 days 61HZ=90H 2,900 10,709
Over 90 days 90H A E 8,052 5,636
220,813 238,010

Less: Provision for impairment of B B E R R ERE
trade receivables (2,844) (3,713)
Trade receivables, net ERER - F58 217,969 234,297
Other receivables H fth EURRIB 12,629 47,369
230,598 281,666

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

As at 31 March 2016, trade receivables from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 73.7% (2015: 70.5%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group's approach of managing credit risk is disclosed in
Note 3.

S B SRR R A R 2 SR B
AFEE -

12016538310 REAARBRFZEWER

KR4I EFT3.7% (2015 : 70.5%) - NEH
HIEERKR 2 EENHE3RE -
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12 Trade and other receivables (continued)

13

100 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivable balances
are denominated in the following currencies:

12 BWE R E WK IE ()

7N £2 B 1 S R e Lt B W R TR A AR R T B DA
THEHESIE -

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hong Kong dollars BIT 8,708 9,580
Renminbi AR 41,506 67,852
US dollars ETT 180,384 193,004
Euro BT - 11,230
230,598 281,666

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the
Group are as follows:

AEBERWEFURERBEESHNT

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

Beginning of the year F4 3,713 2,910
Provision for impairment B RS 308 1,106
Receivables written off as uncollectible AT B 2 B R 8 (1,137) (109)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AT = (203)
Exchange differences fEHZR (40) 9
End of the year FIR 2,844 3,713

The impairment provision made during the year has been included in the
general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, derivative financial instruments mainly
represented foreign exchange forward contracts and the amounts are
denominated in US dollars.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts at 31 March 2016 are HK$232,650,000 (2015:
HK$604,890,000). These foreign exchange forward contracts are held for
trading and are expected to mature at various dates within 15 months
(2015: 20 months).

Annual Report 2015/2016
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14 Other financial assets at fair value through profit 14 BRAFEFABSNHMEMEEE

or loss
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Listed equity securities and investment funds ITTREEHERREES 2,523 3,700
The fair value of all equity securities and investment funds at fair value BRATEFAENZTREELSREEEEZA
is based on their current bid prices in an active market. Other financial FEDBEAEAERTEER BEREER -
assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in the BRAFEFABENEMIBEEEATINEE
following currencies: B8R -
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Hong Kong dollars BIT 1,148 2,037
Renminbi AR 816 938
US dollars ETT 559 725
2,523 3,700
15 Cash and cash equivalents 15 RERREEEY
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash at bank and on hand RITFERERE 372,369 256,233
Short-term bank deposits 5EERERITIE A 43,508 153,092
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFSEEY 415,877 409,325
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was approximately REARITEFRERMNEZLORETF1.1E(2015
1.1% (2015: 3.5%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity 35/E) c ZEFAFEHIHA /258 (2015 : 33
of 25 days (2015: 33 days). H) -
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15 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

15 BERBELSEEY )

ReFRLEEMUTIEESER

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hong Kong dollars BIT 30,349 24,517
Renminbi AR 87,078 204,880
US dollars = 296,512 176,265
Others Hith 1,938 3,663
415,877 409,325

At 31 March 2016, approximately HK$62,123,000 (2015: HK$46,963,000)
of the Group's cash and cash equivalents placed with banks in Mainland
China were denominated in Renminbi, which is subject to foreign

exchange control regulations of Mainland China.

No bank deposits were pledged as security for the Group’s banking

facilities as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

16 Trade and other payables

As at 31 March 2016, the ageing analysis of trade payables by past due

201643 A318 » & £ B 462,123,000/ JT
(2015 : 46,963,0007% 7T ) 17 F A A B A 4 3R 17
ZHEERBEESESEVMAARENER  MARE

o B A SNE B A SRR I o

R20164F K%201543831H » WEIEITHER T
IRIRE A AREBIRITRE 2 KF M -

16 ENERRHEMENTIE

201634318 ' BB HPHEAEZENER

date is as follows: 2R DA

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

Current 2H 98,700 122,005
1 to 30 days 1HZ30H 30,388 28,119
31 to 60 days 31THZE60H 2,501 1,588
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H 5,908 1,991
Over 90 days 90R M E 3,407 6,267
Trade payables ERTER 140,904 159,970
Accruals and other payables FEET B R & E b B FUE 74,189 93,103
215,093 253,073

The carrying amounts of the Group’'s trade
approximate their fair values.
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16 Trade and other payables (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

At %5 ¥l 2% Pff o

16 FER

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other payables balances

are denominated in the following currencies:

EXREMENSFIEE)

AEBZENERREMENFIRGRZRE

EATHERESIRR :

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hong Kong dollars BIT 19,770 23,387
Renminbi ARHE 171,941 187,669
US dollars ETT 22,012 38,496
Other currencies Hih g 1,370 3,521
215,093 253,073

17 EEFTE

BIEFFSTRA A EEAR TR ZRIZP IR
XAHEREMKBEERMZHEZBGE -

17 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
by the statement of financial position date.

EXBHEERABENRATIREE R
BIRREA GIAR] SRBIRTTHEA S AR R
EFEHER M KEARRE - TR 54

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal

authority. e -
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Deferred income tax assets EEFTIS T & B 3,904 2,639
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTISTHAE (1,195) (806)
2,709 1,833
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows: BEFTSHARE < Z8FREAT ¢
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April #4A18 1,833 2,222
Deferred income tax credit/(charged) to REEAEERERFED
consolidated statement of (X 3H) 2 IBFEFA1S R
comprehensive income (Note 25) (PfFE25) 1,039 (412)
Exchange differences fEHZR (163) 23
At 31 March M3A31H 2,709 1,833
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17 Deferred income tax (Continued) 17 EZERBB2)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to FRNELEFMESHEERAGRER—BH %
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the R 2 AR AT 2 BT -

year are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets Tax losses Provisions and others Total
EEMBHEE HIEEE BEREM #at
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

At 1 April ®4H1H 1,131 - 2,639 4,189 3,770 4,189
(Charged)/credited to RErE 2 E R
consolidated statement = ().
of comprehensive income 0 (658) 1,131 1,429 (1,573) 771 (442)
Exchange differences FEH ZRE = - (163) 23 (163) 23
At 31 March M3 A31H 473 1,131 3,905 2,639 4,378 3,770
Accelerated tax
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation Others Total
BELEFEHREE IR BT E Hitt st
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

At 1 April R4A1H (1,909) (1,939) (28) (28) (1,937) (1,967)
Credited to consolidated Rira 2 ERE
statement of comprehensive TP E
income 268 30 = - 268 30
At 31 March ®3A31H8 (1,641) (1,909) (28) (28) (1,669) (1,937)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards RILFTIS T8 E 2 S ] BB B AR R AT EFL A
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits through future HERBBETIENEZER T RN IEE RS
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income o R B R TERIEEFTIS T & & /34,159,000
tax assets of HK$4,159,000 (2015: HK$1,782,000) in respect of losses 7 70(2015 ¢ 1,782,00087T) * B@EELEA
amounting to HK$17,965,000 (2015: HK$7,899,000) that can be carried 17,965,0007%% 7T (2015 : 7,899,000/ 7t ) * #% /&
forward against future taxable income, of which HK$14,060,000 (2015: BeEA TAE  DUEERRTBRKE - &
HK$5,626,000) will expire in five years and the remaining amount has no 714,060,000 7T.(2015 : 5,626,000/ 7T ) #§ 7
expiry date. AFERER - MESGSBLEERBEE -
As at 31 March 2016, deferred income tax liabilities have not been 201653 A318  REBUW &S ETHEAR
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on the A) 2 AR BE IR & ) I8 80 2 TR AN B 1 5R R FE P45 250
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries, as the Group is able to B ARAEEBRENEFIEREZERER 2
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is Wi BRI RS R AT RE N M E R YR E R
probable that no material temporary differences will be reversed in the R o

foreseeable future.

104 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2015/2016



18

19

Notes to the Financial Statements

FA %55 4R 3R Fft 5

Share capital 18 IR
2016 2015
Number of Number of
shares shares
RGHEHE i 8B
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$°000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETREE
TR
Beginning of the year F1) 419,859 41,986 419,859 41,986
Exercise of share options during the year FRITEBIRE 334 33 - =
End of the year FR 420,193 42,019 419,859 41,986
During the year ended 31 March 2016, 334,000 shares of HK$0.1 REE2016F383MBEFE - AEREET
each were issued upon exercise of the share options at an aggregate {25 17334,000/ F R EE01 B T 2 iR fh - 42
consideration of HK$367,400. These shares rank pari passu in all respects RAIER367,4008 7T - ZERMETH H TR
with the existing shares. RERNDZER S -
Share options 19 BIRE

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”)
which complied with Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). At the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012, an ordinary
resolution was passed for the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) and the termination of the Old Scheme. Under the share
option schemes, the Company may grant options to any eligible employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive director), any
non-executive director, any shareholder, any supplier and any customer of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest, and any other party having
contributed to the development of the Group to subscribe for shares in
the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price will be determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of offer; and

the nominal value of the shares.

BIE AR DB R200268F211H @B 2 LB R
HE - ADREREMTABRATES LR A
([EWREDETERTE 2 BIEEI([ &5
2l1) o KRABH201258 A3B 17 2 R BF
AE L BRI ERZRAENITBRAETS
(#7518 )R IEETE - RIBERAETE
RABAMARARSKEEMAHB QRS ASE
EEAKERARFEETAREZAAEEZE
AEEREB(ZHILEN  RETARITE
B) FAERTES - FARE - EAIHE
ARARERE  REAASERRBELERZ
R EMA TR EREARBARBRG -
WEFTH R TS BBA R R TR 2 B#HITR
NEEZ30% °

RBESHARAESTSETE @ LR TERA
TRHEzZ&ERE

BNRBLOE BEBI SR RERMT
ZWTE

(a)

44 X

gh >

BRONEZRZHERMABERSAE
P BRERMAY 2 FHRTE &

RN TEE °
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19 Share options (Continued) 19 BRE®)
Movements of share options under the Old Scheme during the year were FAEHEET ZEREZSOT
as follow:
Lapsed/ Lapsed/
Subscription Exercised cancelled Exercised cancelled
Date of Exercise price per At during during At during during At
grant period share  01/04/2014 the year the year  31/03/2015 the year the year  31/03/2016
88  R2014f FRRR/  R2015%F FRAXRR/  R2016%F
REAH TES B 4818 FRTE Z# 38318 FRfE g8  3A318
HK$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
22/05/2007  22/05/2008 - 1.98 10,800 - - 10,800 - - 10,800
21/05/2017 (Note i)
(B zEi)
28/03/2012  28/03/2013 - 1.10 7,080 - 4 7,076 20 320 6,736
27103/2022 (Note i)
(FzED)
28/03/2014 - 1.10 6,000 - - 6,000 - = 6,000
27103/2022 (Note ii)
(&L
28/03/2015 - 1.10 8,438 - 4,59 3,844 314 156 3,374
27103/2022 (Note iii)
GED)
21,518 - 4,598 16,920 334 476 16,110
Notes: BaE
(i)  The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of () %EEREERRLEBBHESZ —FRHELH
grant. f7ME -
(i)  The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date of (i) ZEBREERKRE B BB MFREL
grant. f7ME -
(iii)  The options were subject to a vesting period of three years from the date of (i) %ZEEREEARREBBHESZ =FRE L
grant. f71E -
(iv)  For the year ended 31 March 2016, the weighted average closing price of (iv) BZE2016F3A31BIEFE  RONBEERE
the shares immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised TS BATZ MR ERIAB T -
was HK$1.41.
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19 Share options (Continued) 19 B
Notes: (Continued) M&E (&)
(v)  The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock (v) ZARABRDREBEBERERLE BAEEAM
Exchange's daily quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which the ARER L2 WHERT :

options were granted were as follows:

Closing price per share immediately
before the date of grant (HK$)

Date of grant A EERHERAZERUTE(ET)
22 May 2007 2007F5H22H 1.95
28 March 2012 201243 A28H 1.10
(vi) At 31 March 2016, outstanding options of 26,910,000 were exercisable. (vi)  7220164E3 8318 © 26,910,000/% & 17 15 B A% 4
A FATE -
(vi) The Company has used the Binomial Model for assessing the fair value of (vi) ARFRAZEARATHAREBEREZ D
the share options granted. According to the Binomial Model, the fair value TE - BREZIEAERX - REE201263A31H

of the options granted during the year ended 31 March 2012 measured as at IEFEEEBERE 2 A TFE (1201263 5280

the date of grant of 28 March 2012 was approximately HK$0.273, HK$0.288 B BHFE) D RIK AFR0.273# T © 0.288

and HK$0.294 per share, respectively, taking into account various factors, BITK0298 T - WEFREZERE  BH X

variables and assumptions which include the following: R - B :

(i) exercise multiple was applied to the historical information of the (i) BEBRERITEES HUATEE
option holders, on average, would exercise their options when the B BREREATERREENTE
stock price is 160% of the exercise price; 8,2 160% %517 B AR

(i) the risk-free interest rate used was 1.27%; iy FAEFEZERBFIEAE1.27E

(iii)  the expected volatility was about 43%; and (i) TEEIREREBELHE43% &

(iv)  the expected annual dividend yield of 5.73%. (iv) TERITBFRBWEZEAS5.73% -

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously REFBEEARG DBNREEEZFBREDRE

compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share BETFERAREZHGADNEL -

prices over the last ten years.

As at 31 March 2016, no share options were granted under the New 201653 A318 - MEBEIEREER
Scheme. T -
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20 Other reserves 20 Hittf#E
Property  Capital Statutory Share
Share revaluation  reserve reserve Investment  option  Exchange
premium reserve (a) (b) reserve  reserve reserve Total

NRELR &% EE RE BRE i3
B L 1 (CV R 1 () #E R #E AR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

At 1 April 2014 R201454818 111,967 1,041 30,575 6,321 (132) 11,379 83,669 244,820
Currency translation differences  [E 5 258 - - - - - - 3,657 3,657
Fair value losses on available-for- A] &8 EE 2

sale financial assets ATERERE - - - - (590) - - (590)

Release of investment reserve  HERIHHEH#
upon disposal of available-for- B ERHMERZ

sale financial assets RERE - - - - 132 = = 132
Release of exchange reserve HERB AR

upon disposal of subsidiaries ~ BEBR 2 [E K 1 = = - - -
Employee share option scheme:  1E 8 FERRE = &) -

(9,607)  (9,607)

— Value of employee services ~— —EERBZEE - - - - - (310) = (310)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - - (28,968) (2,530) = = - (31,498
At 31 March 2015 R2015%3831H 111,967 1,041 1,607 3,791 (590) 11,069 77,719 206,604

Currency translation differences  [E X 2% = = = - -
Fair value losses on available-for- A] £t HEM K EE 2

(23,680) (23,680)

sale financial assets ATEERE = = = = (234) = = (234)
Employee share option scheme: (& B ;13 -
— Lapse of share options - BREXY = = = = = (134) - (134)
— Proceeds from shares issued ~ —{TEEEERRIEM
upon exercise of share Bk
options FIE5R 334 - - - - - - 334
— Exercise of share options — 1T R E 98 = = = = (98) - -
At 31 March 2016 R201653A318 112,399 1,041 1,607 3,791 (824) 10,837 54,039 182,890

Notes: B EE

(a) Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of (a) EBEAXRFEHEIEALRMBETEER ZAESLERBE
the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount of 2000F3 A AR B EAEITRMUEEE 2 B A
the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through an AR (B BB 2 =58 o
exchange of shares pursuant to the Group's reorganisation in March 2000.

(b)  Statutory reserve represents general reserve fund required to be set up (b) EEREBEEARBEYPRAMEEZASRNEBRE
pursuant to the laws of Mainland China for the Group’s subsidiaries in BAL B ARRYN —REEES - — K
Mainland China. The general reserve fund can only be used to make up for REESERERMER BN E Rk
losses incurred, increase registered capital or use for collective welfare of BERE ZEBER -
employees.
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21 Revenue 21 KA
The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, marketing AEBXEEK ARG i  HERHEEE
and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other electronic BEMD EUHREGCETFELRRFEVE -F
products and property holding. Revenues recognised during the year are NEERZWAT :
as follows:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Sales of merchandise BEmiHE 1,130,652 1,245,692
Handling income BRIBA 29,390 18,136
Management fees EEE 154 153
Rental income el A 24 154
1,160,220 1,264,135
22 Other gains — net 22 Hittlz — F8E
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fair value (losses)/gains on derivative PTEERMIA A ATE
financial instruments (E18), W (4,338) 2,800
Fair value (losses)/gains on other financial RATFEFABROEM
assets at fair value through profit or loss WBEEZATE
(E18), W (1,177) 434
Fair value (losses)/gains on investment REME L NTE
properties (Note 7) (B518), Wk (KIsE7) (180) 590
Net gains on disposal of subsidiaries (Note) HERB ATz
EEE (M) - 5,544
Net losses on disposal of available-for-sale HETHREENHKEE
financial assets Z 5185 = (77
Net gains on disposal of other financial assets & ZAFET ABZEH
at fair value through profit or loss Hitb B 158 & v W 558 - 136
Net (losses)/gains on disposal of property, LEWE - BEMEE
plant and equipment 2 (E18) Mg (784) 235
Net realised gains from derivative PTEemIAZ
financial instruments BEERWFE 1,177 4,506
Net foreign exchange gains P 5 U s 5 58 8,523 1,127
3,221 15,295

Note:

On 9 October 2014, the Group disposed of the entire share capital of Fujikon

Electrical Limited, and its 70% owned subsidiary, Zhejiang Fousine Science &

Technology Company Limited (together the “FEL Group”), together with a loan

made by the Group to FEL Group, to Best Fame (Hong Kong) Limited, a company

incorporated in Hong Kong which is wholly-owned by an independent third

party, at a total consideration of RMB29,000,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$36,566,000).

G

R20145F10A898 - AEERER(FE)ERQF

(NEBEMKL AR
HEELSEXERAA

MBYF=F2EHE)
M EHERT0%E = 2 i B

AT ERNRRAERAR (SR ELHE
£E)) 2 2BRASAARENE LB EREEIE

EZ2ER BREBAR
36,566,000/ 7T ) °
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23 Operating profit 23 R&ERF
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the following: rERNBEMER(GTA) TFIEE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEM & 1,630 1,683
Amortisation of land use rights T {E FARE < B8N 167 215
Cost of inventories FERA 953,620 1,087,051
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - B RREZITE 37,063 40,385
Government grants IR #66 B = (448)
Operating lease rental of premises WEZKERNER 6,812 6,846
Provision/(reversal of provision) for RERERE(E#)
impairment of inventory obsolescence 6,343 (4,572)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables FEWE R ERE 308 1,106
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) EBETH(BREZMS)
(Note 28) (HMizr28) 339,700 373,797
24 Finance income 24 MEWA
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest income from KERTZHFBHA
— available-for-sale financial assets — AN EMBEE 501 281
— bank deposits —RITFEHK 5,004 8,347
— loan to a former subsidiary — AT E A AR 2 B3 478 845
5,983 9,473
25 Income tax expenses 25 FiBBi
The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March 2035. RARRB AR ENEBEZE2035F3A R
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015: ERNEHBECRRBREAREBEELESIRE
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from BB 2B ETEERT R A 16.5% (2015 : 16.5%)
Hong Kong for the year. The Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China are HRETE - AEERFEAMZKHBARAR
subject to the China Corporate Income Tax at a rate of 25% (2015: 25%) (5T FE R TR T BA25% (2015 : 25% ) Fi R 2
on estimated assessable profits. RRECEMER -
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25 Income tax expenses (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

At %5 ¥R 2% B 5

25 FiEBix @)

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income represents:

e 2ERERAHIROHRIASRERE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current income tax EHFREH

— Hong Kong profits tax —BEBMEH 5,433 3,341

— China corporate income tax —FhEEMSH 1,137 2,982

— Over-provision in prior years —FFiBRIEE (107) (2,390)
6,463 3,933
 Deferred income tax (Note 17) ELmEBME) 1os9) 412
5,424 4,345

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home

AREBUCRR AT B AT S AR 2 HBREAR
ABERZBREAE2EREBZERN

country of the Company as follows: T

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit before income tax R PTAS B A& 7 30,390 24,819

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% R %16.5% (2015 : 16.5%)
(2015: 16.5%) A8 5,014 4,095

Effect of different taxation rates in RABR AR R 2 2
Mainland China (184) 437
Income not subject to taxation BAGE 2 A (1,438) (3,164)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purpose A BERB bR 2 2 2,872 3,891
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses ¥ FE{EF KRR 2 K E B = (119)
Tax losses not recognised RERZMIBER 2,486 1,533
Over-provision in prior years FF BT EAE (107) (2,390)
Others HAth (3,219) 62
Income tax expenses PRGBS 5,424 4,345
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26 Dividends 26 BRE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interim dividend paid of HK2.0 cents B HREERE B
(2015: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share 2.078011(2015 : 4.0781l) 8,404 16,794
Proposed final dividend of HK5.0 cents BEAHRKREERE @R
(2015: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share 5.0/ (2015 : 5.071L) 21,010 20,993
29,414 37,787

At a meeting held on 23 June 2016, the Board of Directors recommended
a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share amounting to a total of
HK$21,010,000. The proposed dividends are not reflected as a dividend
payable in these consolidated financial statements, and will be reflected
as appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 March 2017.

27 Earnings per share

Basic

27

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

M2016F6 AR RTTr 83 L EF2EE
IR REIRR B &M% L BARS.081(L - ABAH
21,010,000 7T - BZER E T EEZFHRE I
BmKRPIERMNRE - M RENEZE2017
FIANBLUEFEZRBEHNAE -

BRER
A

BREXRBNTAGB AR BRERA A2
MERAFRD BT EBRZ INETFIIHEETE -

2016 2015
Profit attributable to equity holders of FEAARREREA
the Company (HK$'000) @M (FET) 11,259 12,602
Weighted average number of ordinary BETEERZ
shares in issue (in thousands) iREF E(FRR) 420,111 419,859
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERZF GEN) 2.7 3.0
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27 Earnings per share (Continued) 27 BRER #)
Diluted s

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has one category of
dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. For the share options,
a calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual market
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

BREERNDBARRAEECETLBK
B T2 L BT BN T G
H-ARAE-—REEBSL AR HIBEKR
- EREME - JIREBEARITEBRAEM
MREE . EREEREENRATFEREZ
B #8B (ARRB RN FESFHEEE)M
EHEtE - EXEHE 2RO B BERRBRE
BITERBETZRNDBBES -

2016 2015
Profit attributable to equity holders of SEBANTIRERBA
the Company (HK$'000) 2w R (FAET) 11,259 12,602
Weighted average number of ordinary BETEERZ
shares in issue (in thousands) IOREF E(FR%) 420,111 419,859
Adjustment for potential dilutive effect in B ARITEERE
respect of outstanding share options BT EEL
(in thousands) ZIAE(TR) 1,095 6,940
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AESREERN 2
for diluted earnings per share (in thousands) LB T E(F&R) 421,206 426,799
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SREERF CBI) 2.7 3.0
28 Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 28 EEXH(BRERESEME)
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
Wages and salaries ITERF® 298,526 338,570
Other staff benefits HtB TwEF 17,310 16,760
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BAREXH—EHE
(Note 32) HRRET B (F13E32) 23,864 18,777
Value of employee share options EEBREZEBE = (310)
339,700 373,797
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28 Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 28
(Continued)

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2015: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented below. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two individuals during the
year are as follows.

BEXH(BEESEME) @)

(a) EBBEHAL

FRAEEESFRABATEBE=S
(2015: =ZB)EF - BEZHMEER T X
EWzaMRE - FREMBTmEAL
2B o

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

Wages and salaries ITERHF® 3,636 3,462
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BREZH—F8HE

(Note 32) R FRET B (FisE32) 25 25

Value of employee share options EEERECEE = (182)

3,661 3,305

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individuals fell within the
following bands:

FRALTZMEN K THNEER

Number of individuals

ANE
2016 2015
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) <& EOET)
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000 7T = 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000 7T 2 1
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29 Benefits and interests of directors 29 EEwRAEER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
Salary,

allowances Pension costs

and benefits Discretionary and share
Name of Director Fees in kind bonuses options Total

e 28 BiReXH
EEpng e REUEA MRTEAL RERE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z2016%3831H

LEE

Executive Directors HTES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 1BEE

(Chief Executive Officer) (1THEE) - 2,190 - 4 2,194
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R T 48 - 2,129 - 4 2,133
Chow Man Yan, Michael RE3= - 2,129 - 4 2,133
Yuen Chi King, Wyman TRFER - 1,355 - 21 1,376
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben B - 1,355 - 21 1,376
Chow Lai Fung AEBR = 1,355 = 21 1,376
Independent non-executive Directors  BM IFHITES
Chung Chi Ping, Roy EEY 250 - - - 250
Che Wai Hang, Allen BERE 250 - - - 250
Lee Yiu Pun W, 250 - - - 250
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z2015%53H31H

LEE

Executive Directors HTES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 7

(Chief Executive Officer) (fTH e %) - 2,086 - 4 2,090
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R T 48 = 2,028 = 4 2,032
Chow Man Yan, Michael Ehg - 2,028 - 4 2,032
Yuen Chi King, Wyman IRFE - 1,290 - 2 1,311
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben o - 1,290 - 21 1,311
Chow Lai Fung [AER - 1,290 - 2 1,311
Independent non-executive Directors B IFMTES
Chung Chi Ping, Roy EEY 200 - - - 200
Che Wai Hang, Allen BEE 200 - - - 200
Lee Yiu Pun PR 200 - - - 200
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29 Benefits and interests of directors (continued)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

116 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i)  Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking.

(i)  No remuneration has been paid by the Group to the Directors as an
inducement to join upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office during the current and prior years. There was no arrangement
under which a Director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the current and prior years.

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2015: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of the directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2015: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2015: Nil).
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30 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated

Notes to the Financial Statements
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30 mMEBERERME
(a) AEERFRLLIHHRBIREY

from operations: HER -
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$°000
Profit for the year ANF s A 24,966 20,474
Adjustments for: HATEIBELFE
— Amortisation of land use rights — i fE AR 2 B8R 167 215
— Depreciation of property, W% - BER
plant and equipment RBZITE 37,063 40,385
— Finance income —®EWA (5,983) (9,473)
— Income tax expenses — e H 5,424 4,345
— Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative —PTHESHBIA
financial instruments NEEEE, (W) 4,338 (2,800)
— Fair value losses/(gains) on other —RAFEAERED
financial assets at fair value HtGBEES
through profit or loss NEEEE, (W) 1,177 (434)
— Fair value losses/(gains) on —REMELTEZ
investment properties &8 (M) 180 (590)
— Net losses on disposal of —HERHEHENKEE
available-for-sale financial assets ZERFE - 77
— Net gains on disposal of other —HERATEF ABRN
financial assets at fair value Hh @i & & 2 e
through profit or loss P = (136)
— Net losses/(gains) on disposal of —HEME BELEREZ
property, plant and equipment 1R () 8 784 (235)
— Net gains on disposal of subsidiaries —HENB AR 2 M FEE = (5,544)
— Provision/(reversal of provision) for —REFERE, (E#)
impairment of inventory obsolescence 6,343 (4,572)
— Provision for impairment of — R E TR ERE
trade receivables 308 1,106
— Value of employee share options —EEBREZEE = (310)
— Exchange differences —[ERERE (13,410) 1,300
61,357 43,808
Changes in working capital: LEESEY
— Inventories &8 (27,461) (535)
— Trade receivables — R E R 15,496 (41,604)
— Other receivables — H b e RIE 30,642 5,889
— Trade payables —ERER (12,257) 7,822
— Accruals and other payables —JERT B R R EAEN IR (15,814) (10,378)
Cash generated from operations KRS CR® 51,963 5,002
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30 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 30 ZERERERKT (&)

(Continued)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing activities during the (b) FAMETEEE DT :
year:
Share capital and share premium
B B IR 1 5 (B
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4A1H 153,953 153,953
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 77 {# B AR 4E M 2 1TAX (5 367 =
Employee share option scheme: REBREE
— Exercise of share options — {7 BB AR 98 =
At 31 March M3 H31H 154,418 153,953
31 Commitments 31 &I
(a) Capital commitments (a) BREE
The Group had the following authorised and contracted capital REEERBERETOERAEZNT -
commitments:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Acquisition of machinery and equipment B B S B3 4,537 3,776
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) REHERE
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under REBRBEZIBAIFH CEHER K
various non-cancellable operating leases as follows: RENKEHSEBENT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Not later than one year THB1F 5,955 5,093
Later than one year and not later than five years #2if15F {8 EBB5F 13,026 13,112
Later than five years HBIB5F 3,509 6,465
22,490 24,670
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33

Notes to the Financial Statements

Pension obligations

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. The assets of
the fund are held separately from those of the Group and are managed by
independent professional fund managers. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer's and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month, as appropriate,
as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance, and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China. The employees contribute up to 8% of their basic
salaries, while the Group contributes to retirement plans approximately at
13% to 20% of the basic salaries of its employees in Mainland China, and
has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

Financial guarantee

At 31 March 2016, the Company had provided guarantees in respect
of banking facilities of its subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$155,700,000 (2015: HK$155,700,000). No facilities were utilised by
the subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

32

33

FA %55 4R 3R Fft 5

RARSEE

NEBLZHEBREELEA BB IUETIAE
By rRAEFAHMELESHB(REST
B -EezEERAEEELMEESFHF
A THBVEEESKEETE - RERES
HE - AEEREEEHANGHIEAES X
BlFfEE 2 BEHE 25%F A M8l #
e BRI MERAES IO ARTE  BEERE
Stz ERH AT A1,5008 T (HEE) @ IR
A B FEREIMERR o

RIFFBEAMERREZRRE  AEERES
BAiE R MBI RE B 2 RRETEIEHHK -
BEARSREEAFHE Z8%IEL MR - MA
SERARERARGEELEPEANMERER
¥ & H13%E20%.2 #5350 - B A E R
S HRKEN Z BB E R AR < RIK
BE 2 A RKE N BERE B 2 RIKET
BEE -

B ISR AR

2016538318 - AR Al AEWE AR 2R
TREELER - © % 4 /155700,0007% 7T
(2015 : 155,700,0007% 7T ) ° {8 2 F17A20164F
K2015F3A31 B EB R EMRE
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34 Related party transactions

34 FAEALRS

The Company’s directors consider there is no ultimate holding company

as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

(a) The following significant transactions were carried out

with related parties:

720164 K 20153 A31H » AR A EEZR AL
BERISIER AT

(a) AEBMERBEALTZEARZUT

Name of related party/ 2016 2015
nature of transaction BEALZER RXFZHE HK$'000 HK$'000
The Bright Printing Press and St BART R BN AR R
Paper Products Limited (i) BRAF)
— Sales of merchandise to the Group —AREEHEEE®R 732 893
— Management fees paid/payable to B/ ENAEE
the Group ZEREH 22 21
First Success Technology Limited (i) HERRERAF)
— Rental expense paid/payable by —REEE EMN
the Group itk 1,016 851
— Management fees paid/payable -B/ENAEE
to the Group ZEREH 132 132

Note

(i)  Both companies are wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr.

Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, directors of the

Company.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the above related party

transactions were conducted in the usual course of business of

the Group and in accordance with terms mutually agreed by the

respective parties.

(b) Key management compensation

Key management personnel are the Company's executive directors.
Details of compensation of key management personnel are disclosed

in Note 29 to the financial statements.
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35 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the 35 ZXAREEEERRHEHESD

Company
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (a) XAFEEEER
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets ERBNE E
___ Investments in subsidiaries WBARZEE 142468 142,468
Current assets MENVEE
Other receivables H e RIR 687 310
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS KT /B A Bl 5IE 186,981 194,845
Current income tax recoverable AU e HA AT 1S 58 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekBSEEY 435 1,483
_Total currentassets RBEESE  1esael 196,638
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R E A R R IE 1,043 1,009
Current income tax liabilities EHFREEAaE - 50
_Total current liabilities RBABEE L 1,059
_Netcurrentassets neAEFE . wms 195,579
Net assets BEFE 329,586 338,047
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable to EBARNRRERBAZ
the Company's equity holders B R
Share capital [N 42,019 41,986
Other reserves H R 262,036 261,836
Retained earnings RE = FI 25,531 34,225
Total equity EEAE 329,586 338,047
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of RAREEBEREN20165F6 7230 %
Directors on 23 June 2016 and was signed on its behalf. EEEMERBUTERRRES -
YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON
Chairman Joint Deputy Chairman
FE BESFE
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35 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the

Company (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

(b) RRBREEEH

35 A RREERBREFRER S (2

Contributed Share
Share surplus option Retained
premium (Note (i)) reserve earnings Total
BERBE R
IR 455 E (BE&EEG)) f#E /REER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2014 201454811 111,967 138,800 11,379 47,234 309,380
Profit and total comprehensive FRHENLZE
income for the year W tage - - - 41,572 41,572
Employee share option scheme: 2 B AT &l
— Value of employee services —RERBZEE - = (310) = (310)
Dividends paid EATARE - = - (54,581)  (54,581)
At 31 March 2015 7201543 H31H 111,967 138,800 11,069 34,225 296,061
Profit and total comprehensive FRRNRER
income for the year WestBass - - - 20,586 20,586
Employee share option scheme: & B BEARERT 2
— Lapse of share options —BERRIE RN - = (134) 134 =
— Proceed from shares issued — 1T AR
upon exercise of BITRM 2
share options 88 334 - - _ 334
— Exercise of share options —{T{E AR 98 = (98) = =
Dividends paid EAIARE - - - (29414 (29,414
At 31 March 2016 742016438318 112,399 138,800 10,837 25,531 287,567
Note Bt aE
() Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal () BHBKMEARAMBETEBEREE

value of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset EEIR$R20004F3 A AN & B S /H EFTHRAR M
value of a subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant WHE—MEAREEFEER -
to the Group’s reorganisation in March 2000.
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